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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B #E

2014 Changes
HK$'m %
B AT B
(Loss) profit for the year Attributable 2N A 1A A BIEFER
to Owners of the Company (E518) & (66) 109 (161%)
Total Assets BERE 11,295 11,931 (5%)
Equity Attributable to Owners of RREVHEE NERRAR
the Company 6,790 7,359 (8%)
Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank EIRRITIFR ~ RITHEER
Balances and Cash ERE 490 1,719 (71%)
Changes
Key Performance and Liquidity FEEERRAR HK$ HK$ %
Indicators: MR RIEE BT BT B
Basic (Loss) Earnings Per Share BRAR(EE) B (0.029) 0.047 (162%)
Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) BREEFEMFZT) 2.95 3.19 (8%)
P/E Ratio (Note 1) MAE(MF1) (35.5x) 23.4x (252%)
Return on Capital Employed (Note 2) B&ZK[EIR & (Hf:£2) (1%) 1.5% (167 %)
Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEEDBR(HE3) (0.6%) 0.9% (167%)
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BELET4) 38.4% 35% 10%
Adjusted Gearing Ratio (Note 5) KRAREEL R (M) 31% 12% 158%
Current Ratio (Note 6) BN K (B 6) 1.1x 1.4x (21%)
Interest Coverage (Note 7) MBEMLRE7) (0.2x) 1.8x (111%)
Notes: W

1.

Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 31
December, 2015 (2014: 2,304,849,611 shares) and the market
closing price of HK$1.03 (2014: HK$1.10) per share.

Calculated as (loss) profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company over equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Calculated as (loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company over total assets.

Calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Calculated as net borrowings over equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.

Calculated as (loss) profit for the year before finance costs and
taxation over finance costs.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 1%%& %

Board of Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Silver Grant
International Industries Limited (the “Company”) as at the
date of this report are set out below:

Executive directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)

Gu Jianguo

Non-executive directors

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman)

Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)

Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive directors

Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)

Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing

Nomination Committee

Chen Xiaozhou (Committee Chairman)
Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Company Secretary

Chow Kwok Wai
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 1t%& 8

Company Lawyer
Tung & Co. Solicitors
Legal Counselor
Tung Tat Chiu, Michael
Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Citic Bank International Limited
Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

(Tel: 29801888 Fax: 28610285)
Registered Office

Suite 4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

(Tel: 28770030 Fax: 28029506)
Company Website
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk

Stock Code

171
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS EE# KB L

Review of Results

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$65.8 million (2014: profit of HK$109.4
million). Loss per share was HK$0.029 (2014: Earnings per
share of HK$0.047).

The results recorded a prominent decrease to a net loss was
mainly attributable to the following factors:

Firstly, in the second half year of 2015, Hong Kong stock
market dropped significantly in light of the breakdown of
worldwide stock market particularly the A-share market. As a
result, a significant fair value loss of approximately HK$42.0
million was recognised in respect of the Group’s held-for-
trading investments.

Secondly, a significant operating loss was incurred during
the year by Tai Zhou United East Petrochemical Company
Limited (“TZ United East”) due to the accumulation of
operating expenses in the absence of revenue generated
from production. During the year, international crude oil
prices were very volatile and have recorded a significant
decreased trend. After TZ United East completed its five
months’ test-production in the second half year, TZ United
East deliberately delayed the commencement of production
in order to observe the further movements of crude oil
prices and to wait for crude oil prices to stabilize. During the
year, loss attributable to TZ United East was approximately
HK$123.7 million (after deducting non-controlling interest of
approximately HK$61.5 million).

Moreover, the Group disposed of a principal associate,
Yang Quan Coal Industry (Group) Tiantai Investment Limited
(“Yangquan Tiantai”) in last year and recognised a one-time
gain on disposal amounting to approximately HK$160.8
million (before deduction of expenses). After netting off
the loss shared from Yangquan Tiantai in the amount of
approximately HK$87.0 million, net profit contribution from
Yangquan Tiantai in last year was approximately HK$73.8
million.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Outlook

A slower China growth coupled with the expectation that
United States is to embark on its tightening path, Hong Kong
and China will see continued adjustments, particularly in the
high-end retail sector and the real estate sector. The Board
expects the money and the stock market will remain volatile.
Year 2016 will face a challenging macro outlook.

The Board believes the China authorities have appropriate
tools to support growth and the financial system if necessary
for the purpose of maintaining the target economic growth
rate. In a tougher operating environment in 2016, the Board
will continue to focus on execution of its business plans and
strategies.

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items:

Sales of Petrochemical Products/Cost of Sales and
Services

The significant decrease in sales of petrochemical products
and cost of sales and services were mainly attributable to
TZ United East. TZ United East was basically under the
situation of suspended production for both years, and
there were no actual production and sales of products.
In previous year, sales of petrochemical products and the
related costs of sales represented the sales of previously
contracted raw materials at a thin margin. In current year,
sales of petrochemical products represented the sales of the
remaining small amount of raw materials and the related cost.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Decrease was mainly due to the significant decrease in
government grant and interest income in the amount
of approximately HK$57.4 million and HK$43.1 million
respectively. During the year, no government grant in respect
of compensating certain expenses and loss incurred by TZ
United East was received (2014: approximately HK$58.6
million), as the production activities of TZ United East has
reduced significantly. Decrease in interest income was due to
decrease of approximately HK$30.1 million interest received
from associates as a result of reduction in interest rate and
decrease of approximately HK$21.4 million interest received
from loan receivables as a results of reduction in interest rate
and average outstanding balance.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items: (Continued)

Impairment Loss on Available-for-sales Investment

In last year, the Group recognised impairment loss amounting
to approximately HK$15.4 million and approximately
HK$37.9 million in respect of its investment in Winsway
Enterprises Holdings Limited (“Winsway”) and Kuenkel-
Wagner Prozesstechnolgie GmbH (“KW”) respectively. Due
to significant decrease in the share prices of Winways, an
impairment loss was then recognised. As for KW, it has been
persistently suffering from the economic recession in Europe
in recent years. The reduction of sales orders associated with
the high labour cost has adversely affected the operating
conditions of KW. In particular, the cessation or refusal of
bank(s) to provide finance to KW triggered KW’s application
for a liquidation protection order in the second half year of
2014, where the liquidator(s) having taken possession of KW
and its assets proposed to sell the entire interest of KW in a
public auction in early September 2014. In this relation, the
Company was informed that the lead investor representing
the original shareholders of KW had participated in the
auction in order to buy back KW and that another bidder
however won the bid eventually. Under this situation, the
Group made a full provision for impairment loss in respect of
the investment in KW in last year. The Group has advanced
a proportionate shareholder loan in the amount of Euro
912,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9.7 million) to KW
and such loan has been recovered in full during the year.

Impairment Loss on Other Receivable

Last year’s amount represented the full provision for bad debt
amounting to approximately HK$86.0 million made by the
Group in respect of a receivable from Apex Wide Holdings
Limited which is the sole shareholder of China New Materials
(Zhongpu) Holdings Limited (currently known as Chung Yuen
High Polymer New Materials Holdings Limited) (“China New
Materials”).
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS EE# KEIRE

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items: (Continued)

Share of Results of Associates

Decrease in share of loss of associates was mainly due
to ceasing to share Yangquan Tiantai’s loss following the
disposal of the entire equity interest in Yangquan Tiantai by
the end of year 2014. In 2014, the Group shared a loss of
approximately HK$87.0 million from Yangquan Tiantai.

Taxation

A taxation credit was recognised in last year was mainly due
to the fact that the actual amount of land appreciation tax
paid in respect of investment properties disposed of was less
than the carrying amount of deferred tax. Such difference
amounting to approximately HK$97.1 million was written
back as taxation credit in last year. There was no deferred
tax written back in the current year.

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position:

Property, Plant and Equipment

Increase was due to the additions of construction in progress
in respect of the 1.0 million tons per year heavy oil production
facility (the “Binjiang Project”) by TZ United East during the
year.

Interests in Associates
The increase was mainly due to the further capital injection to
an associate amounting to approximately RMB189.1 million

(equivalent to approximately HK$226.0 million) made by the
Group during the year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

It represents the investment in the five-year exchangeable
bond with 5% coupon interest issued by China Uranium
Development Company Limited acquired in 2012. Up to the
date of this report, no exchange right has been exercised. If
no exchange right is exercised in the remaining life of bonds,
the principal of the bond amounting to HK$776.0 million plus
accrued interest will be repayable in full on the maturity date
in May 2017.

Inventory

Increase was due to the raw materials purchased for the
test-production period by TZ United East which has yet to be
used.

Held-for-trading Investments

Increase was mainly a result of the increased trading activities
during the year.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

The increase was mainly due to the significant increase
in the deductible input VAT in respect of property, plant
and equipment acquired by TZ United East amounting to
approximately HK$108.9 million. The input VAT is deductible
against the output VAT in the future. And the Group has
made an advance of approximately RMB83.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$99.0 million) to a business
partner by the end of the year.

Amount due from Associates

Increase was mainly due to an advance made to an associate
amounting approximately HK$273.6 million during the year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

Loan Receivables

RERBERDE2EH : (&)

L e N

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE FET

Carrying balances under non-current ERHEEE NERAS
assets — 570,342
Carrying balances under current assets B EEIR NIREME AR 270,012 228,137
Total FEks 270,012 798,479

These were loans made to certain independent borrowers for
the purpose of utilising a portion of the Group’s idle funds for
better returns and to increase interest income in the prevailing
low deposit rates era. The decrease was mainly due to partial
settlement of loan receivables during the year.

Bank Balances and Cash

The significant decrease in bank balances and cash was
mainly due to utilisation of funds by TZ United East on
the construction of construction in progress amounting to
approximately HK$766.1 million; further capital injection to
Zhong Hai You Qi amounting to approximately HK$226.0
million; payment of 2014 final dividend amounting to
approximately HK$115.2 million and utilisation of funds for
the investing in held-for-trading investments, etc., during the
year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

| 4 76 35 45

RERBERDE2EH : (&)

Borrowings Ef=1
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFET

Carrying balances under non-current ERHEBEE TNEFERAS

liabilities 1,236,320 1,471,787
Carrying balances under current liabilities )& E&E NEREEAR 1,369,567 1,100,618
Total EGEL] 2,605,887 2,572,405

Increase in total borrowings was mainly the net effect of Tai
Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ Dong
Thai”) obtained a loan from minority shareholders amounting
to approximately HK$144.4 million during the year, and total
borrowings decreased by approximately HK$111.6 million as
a result of RMB depreciation.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other Payables

Decrease was mainly due to partial settlement of the
retention money and balances payable in respect of the
Binjiang Project made by TZ United East during the year. At
31 December 2015, the carrying balances of the retention
money and balance amounted to approximately HK$507.8
million. (2014: HK$688.5 million).
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS EE# KEIRE

Business Review
Property Investments, Management and Development
Property Leasing

Rental income of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing East Gate”) for the current year amounted to
approximately HK$86.1 million (2014: HK$81.6 million). Rental
income increase slightly by approximately 6% was mainly due
to increase in rental upon renewal of tenancy agreements.
The property leasing segment recorded a segment profit for
the year which is performing better than a segmental loss in
last year. The main reason was that a gain of approximately
HK$36.9 million (2014: loss of approximately HK$29.9 million)
was recognised upon revaluation of the investment properties
which further enhanced the segment results.

Property Management

Property management fee income of Beijing Yinda Property
Management Limited (“Yinda”) for the current year amounted
to approximately HK$220.4 million (2014: HK$203.1 million),
representing an increment of approximately 9%. Segment
loss was approximately HK$19.1 million (2014: HK$24.6
million). The main reason was that Yinda has solicited 2 new
projects and 1 new project by the end of 2014 and in 2015
respectively resulting in increase of management fee income
which was substantially offset by the increase in staff costs
at the same time. At 31 December 2015, there were 27
projects (2014: 26 projects) under the management of Yinda,
with managed gross floor area in excess of 4.0 million square
meters (2014: in excess of 4.0 million square meters).

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS EE# KB L

Business Review (Continued)

Property Investments, Management and Development
(Continued)

Property Development

Cinda Jianrun Property Company Limited (“Cinda Jianrun”)
is a 30% owned associate of the Group. In 2014, there was
a downward adjustment trend in the real estate market in
China as both prices and floor area of commodity houses
sold declined over the previous years. In the second half year
of 2014, there were signs of improvement in the real estate
market after the local governments (except Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou and Shenzhen) gradually loosened the restrictions
on mortgage lending and purchase. In addition, as the
authority to take austerity measures on the real estate market
was delegated from the central to the local governments
and with the full liberalization of financing to the real estate
industry and mortgage loans for home purchases, it will
provide the impetus for recovery of the real estate market.

In addition, due to the fact that Cinda Jianrun needs more
time to realise its short-term and medium-term investments
at appropriate price levels. Therefore, the Board changed its
mind to close the operations of Cinda Jianrun in 2014 and
continue to retain Cinda Jianrun as a vehicle company. When
the operating environment of the real estate sector have signs
of further improvement, the Group will re-consider to invest in
and/or develop medium to high grade real estate projects.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)
Financial Investments

The Group strategically invested in certain PRC enterprises.
These enterprises have good potential for separate listing.
Some of them have already been listed. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying value of these strategic investments
was approximately HK$310.2 million in aggregate (2014:
HK$352.3 million) with individual allocation detailed below:

EBOEE)
TRIRE

AEBERBEEWEERETHREMLE - %%
TEABBY LT 2EN HRMLHIFE L
e R2015F 12 A31H » ZEHRBEHIRE
2 BR T B 4 %8 49 5 310,200,000 7 7T (2014
% : 352,300,00087T) + H& B8 ES
LU

2015 2014

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET B&EET

JC International L B B 124.6 124.6
Beijing TeraSolar KIS B 69.3 —
CUP mh [ SR gt 53.8 57.1
SINOMA AR 1 34.2 54.0
Kema Yinxiang BB EI& 22.7 241
West King ZTHE - 62.2
Winsway K AE - 24.6
Others HAh 5.6 5.7
310.2 352.3

JC International

The Group invested RMB100.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$124.6 million) for an indirect equity interest
of 10% in Jiangxi Copper International Trading Co., Ltd. (“*JC
International”). JC International is a 60% owned subsidiary of
Jiangxi Copper Company Limited and is principally engaged
in the trading of copper on both the spot and futures market.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)
Financial Investments (Continued)
Beijing TeraSolar

Beijing TeraSolar Photothermal Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing TeraSolar”) is a high-tech enterprise providing
complete solution for solar thermal power system specialising
in research and development, manufacture and marketing
services of solar mirrors, concentrating collectors, thermal
storage systems, solar tracking devices and supporting
structures. It is further supported by a strong technical team
of experienced experts, with doctors and masters degrees
who have been focusing on the research and development
of concentrating solar thermal (“CST”) technologies and
products for over 6 years. Beijing TeraSolar possess the core
technology in the area of solar thermal power generation
and has obtained a complete set of industrial-wise chain
of self-developed intellectual property rights. In the PRC,
it has been granted with 57 patents in total, including 12
invention patents and 45 utility model patents. It also has 35
patents pending for application in total, including 32 invention
patents and 3 utility model patents. On the other hand,
Beijing TeraSolar devotes itself to comprehensive utilisation
and development of renewable energy. With its advanced
technologies, rich experience, foreseeing idea and continuous
technical innovation, Beijing TeraSolar is well positioned to
play an important role in new product’s development, quality
assurance and service system, and promote the CST industry
in the PRC and the world.

In May 2015, the Group entered into an agreement to invest
RMB116.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$138.6
million) in cash to Beijing TeraSolar for an equity interest of
8.29%. During the year of 2015, the Group paid RMB58.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$69.3 million) as partial
payment in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The
remaining balance will be payable on or before the end of
year 2016.

cuP
CUP is the largest bank card association and credit card
issuers in the Mainland China having a very bright business

prospect. At 31 December 2015, the Group beneficially owns
7.5 million shares in CUP.

Annual Report 2015
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)
Financial Investments (Continued)
SINOMA (Hong Kong: 1893)

The Group has an effective interest in approximately 23.1
million foreign domestic shares in the share capital of China
National Materials Company Limited (“SINOMA”), which can
be freely transferred after the application to be made to the
China Securities Regulatory Commission. Compared with
the balance as at 31 December 2014, the decrease in the
carrying amount was due to the decrease in market value of
SINOMA.

Kema Yinxiang

Kema Yinxiang Industries Limited (“Kema Yinxiang”),
a former 50% owned joint venture of the Group, is a
construction material supplier specialized in providing all-
round bathroom solutions to customers. Its business is
the design, manufacture and wholesaling of Italian Style
bathroom products in its own brand name of “ELEEHI%& . The
core product is bathroom suite known as the “CubiX” series.
CubiX series are pre-made modules of bathroom structures
capable of being combined into different stylish and tailored
bathrooms.

West King

On 1 June 2015, the Company disposed of the entire
20% equity interest in West King (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited (“West King”) at a consideration of RMB45.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$56.4 million) through the
disposal of a subsidiary and recognised a loss on disposal
amounting to approximately HK$5.9 million.

Winsway (Hong Kong: 1733)

All the Winsway shares were disposed of during the year and
recognised a gain of approximately HK$758,000.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products

TZ United East

TZ United East is a 66.77% owned subsidiary of the Group.
TZ United East’s principal business is the manufacturing
and trading of organic solvent methyl ethyl ketone. After
the completion of the Binjiang Project, the current annual
production capacity of TZ United East has been increased
from 110,000 tons to 1,000,000 tons.

The operating results of TZ United East are summarized

EBOEE)
AHMEIER
FMEHHET
FMREE T AR KB R I 66.77% 0 K 8
NE e FMRBETIIXBREENHESR
WRBSR M- B THBRTKE - M

REL TERED 110,000 FF E e R E
1,000,000 MBS E{E ©

MR THREXEREMT ¢

below:

Changes

2014 s
Tons %
il w Bk
Raw material processed (Note) BN (57) 378,500 16,900 2,140%
Products sold (Note) EmEE (i) 263,100 16,300 1,5614%
Changes
HKS$ million HK$ million %
BEETT AEET A
Revenue WA 30.8 123.1 (75%)
Net loss FEE (185.2) (23.1) 702%

Note: The quantities of raw material processed and products sold in
2015 were derived from the data of the test-production period.

Annual Report 2015
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)
Petrochemical Products (Continued)
TZ United East (Continued)

TZ United East completed the construction of the Binjiang
Project in the second quarter of the year and subsequently
commenced a five-month test-production period from June
to October for the purpose of an overall testing of the full
range of production devices and carrying out any fine tuning
as necessary. In order to have a full assessment of the quality
and capability of the newly constructed equipment, TZ United
appointed a third party FA{LEKEA{LTIEAF to perform
a throughout assessment of the capability and technical
standard of all the production and accessory equipment in
early September 2015. TZ United East also appointed a third
party ZEMTEREERF 0L to evaluate the environmental
issues. Results of the assessment indicated that the new
production and accessory equipment achieved their design
standards and the quality of outputs were higher than the
designed standards. All the newly constructed equipment of
TZ United East has fulfilled the product quality, environmental
protection and production safety standards. In the first half
year of 2015, international crude oil prices were fluctuating
at the range of US$50-70 per barrel. In the second half year,
international crude oil prices suddenly dropped significantly
to approximately US$40 per barrel. At the beginning of 2016,
international crude oil prices marked a 20 years record low of
approximately US$30 per barrel which creates a large impact
on the production activities of TZ United East. Consequently,
TZ United East decided to postpone the commencement of
formal productions in order to observe the further trend in
the movements of crude oil prices. And to wait for a relatively
stable or even rising trend of crude oil prices to occur before
commencing formal productions.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS EE# KB L

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

TZ United East (Continued)

As there was no formal production activities during the year,
there were only limited quantities of raw materials being
processed and products being sold during the year. Revenue
for the both years represented the revenue received from the
direct selling of the raw materials acquired through previously
contracted supply contracts. As the revenue from sale of raw
materials in both years were limited which were not capable
of covering all the operating expenses during the years.
Therefore, TZ United East incurred a net loss in both years.
In addition, reasons such as TZ United East had received
a government grant amounting to approximately HK$58.6
million in 2014; provision for impairment loss in respect of
crude oil inventory in the amount of approximately HK$30.0
million in 2015 and finance costs increased significantly by
approximately HK$44.8 million in 2015 due to increased
average loan balance, etc. has further increased TZ United
East’s loss magnitude.

For the time being, TZ United East is still in a non-producing
condition. During those non-producing days, TZ United
East reviewed the efficiency of major production equipment
and took the advantage of non-running of the equipment to
further renovate certain production equipment such as re-
designing the equipment to further lower the consumption of
steams and electricity which is more energy efficient and is
more environmental friendly.

At the beginning of 2016, crude oil prices dropped further
to the level of approximately US$30 per barrel which is very
close to the cost of production of US$20 per barrel of OPEC.
For time being, crude oil prices are fluctuating in the range
of US$30-40 per barrel. The Board believes that crude oil
prices has basically reached a stable stage and the possibility
for significant drop is relatively low. The production cycle
of TZ United East is approximately one month. A long term
stable or a continuous rising trend of crude oil prices is most
beneficial to the operation of TZ United East. The Board will
commence the formal production of TZ United East shortly.

Annual Report 2015
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

TZ United East (Continued)

The Board is currently investigating various proposals
regarding the supply of crude oil, a critical raw material. The
purpose is to secure adequate and stable crude oil supply
for TZ United East to satisfy production needs and further
enhance the operating capabilities of TZ United East.

Zhong Hai You Qi

Zhong Hai You Qi (Taizhou) Petrochemical Company Limited
(“Zhong Hai You Qi") is a 23.083% owned associate of the
Group. Its principal business is the manufacturing and trading
of fuel ail, basic lubricant oil and heavy duty bitumen. The
current annual production capacity of Zhong Hai You Qi is 1.5
million tons.

The operating results of Zhong Hai You Qi are summarized

EBOEE)
AMETERE)
FIMRBIET ()

[F) i 2 5 & 7T o B 5 R A1 FR ek O {1 FE B A%
ETHE BONARMREEIHEHERREER
REMNRMMERE  HEEERRKIAE N
SRR TV RTERE S ©

4

REBEREMALERAR(H EHE])
BAEBEERIFTR23.03% B E AR - H
FEXBRAEREEMENR - BB hER
e BEREEEER HEBEREAES
150 B MEFEERE ©

TERRNGEXEMENT

below:

Changes

2015 2014 &
Tons Tons %
l 4 B
N/A
Annual production capacity FER 1,500,000 1,500,000 3 A
Crude oil processed [FmanT 1,501,300 1,429,800 5%
Changes

2
HKS$ million HKS$ million %
E&EET EEET B
Revenue WA 5,103.4 6,752.7 (24%)
Net profit 5 ) 17.8 206.3 (91%)
Profit contribution v I & Bk 4.1 47.5 (91%)

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi (Continued)

The persistent and significant drop in international crude
oil prices in recent years has a negative impact on the oil
refinery activities of Zhong Hai You Qi. In 2014, international
crude oil prices dropped significantly from approximately
US$100 per barrel at the beginning the year to approximately
US$50 per barrel by the end of the year. There was no
sign of a continuous re-bounce during 2014. As a result,
Zhong Hai You Qi incurred operating loss in 2014. Having
made application to the government and received a subsidy
of approximately RMB220.0 million, Zhong Hai You Qi
maintained its 2014 results at a profitable position.

In 2015, crude oil prices are even more volatile and
continued its decreasing trend. In the first half year of 2015,
international crude oil prices were fluctuating at the range of
approximately US$50-70 per barrel and suddenly dropped
significantly to approximately US$40 per barrel by the end of
2015. As crude oil prices were fluctuating fiercely during the
year which has seriously affected the production stability and
profitability of Zhong Hai You Qi. In additions, the slowdown
in economic activities in the mainland market had caused a
sharp decrease in the retail prices of petrochemical products.
The decrease in retail prices of petrochemical products was
larger than the decrease in crude oil prices or even to lower-
than-cost price level. As a result, Zhong Hai You Qi inevitably
incurred operating loss in the year. Having made application
to the government and received a subsidy of approximately
RMB60.0 million, Zhong Hai You Qi maintained its annual
results at a profitable position.

Annual Report 2015
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Growth Strategies

To expand its existing investments in power and
petrochemical products production remain the growth
strategy of the Group. The Board believes that these growth
strategies will eventually result in extending the sources of
recurring income and expanding the magnitude of recurring
income.

Power Aspect

As Mainland China is increasingly concerns about
environmental issues, the use of renewable energy will
become more popular. In May 2015, the Group participated
in the renewable energy sector through investing in a 8.29%
equity interest in Beijing TeraSolar.

In 2014, the General Office of the State Council of
the PRC published the “the Strategic Action Plan for
Energy Development (2014-2020)”, which promoted the
implementation of solar thermal power generation engineering
projects at a steady pace, and included solar thermal power
generation as one of the 20 focuses as to the direction on
the innovation in energy technology development in the PRC.
According to “the Notice on the 13th Five-Year Work Plan
of the PRC on Enhancing the Solar Energy Development
by the Comprehensive Department of the National Energy
Administration” issued by the National Energy Administration
of the PRC on 24 December 2014, solar thermal power
generation was emphasised in the contents of such notice,
which illustrates that solar thermal power generation will be
an important industry development focus during the period of
the 13th Five-Year Work Plan of the PRC.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS EE# KB L

Growth Strategies (Continued)
Power Aspect (Continued)

Since solar thermal power generation has the characteristics
of power storage capability and better compatibility to power
grid compared with that of the other renewable energy for
power generation such as wind power and photovoltaics, it
can facilitate the application of power control and distribution.
Moreover, solar thermal power generation is not reliant on
other raw materials and has an environmentally friendly
power production process. As a result, it will be one of the
major sources of renewable energy in the near future and will
provide far greater social and economic benefits than other
renewable energy such as wind power and photovoltaics. In
this connection, the Board considers that Beijing TeraSolar
is equipped with self-developed core technology in solar
thermal power generation system and a complete set of
industrial-wise chain of intellectual property rights, which
covers product manufacturing technology, engineering and
installation technology, system integration technology and
technology for operation and maintenance. Fundamentally
resolved the problem of high cost of production currently
faced by solar thermal power generation technology and turn
into a competitive and sustainable green energy. As such,
investing in Beijing TeraSolar will allow the Group to enter
into the business of solar thermal power generation industry
and to diversify its revenue stream, which will in turn increase
the Shareholders’ value and benefit the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has made further investment in renewable energy
sector. On 8 October 2015, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Taizhou Yinjian”) entered into a joint venture agreement with
six other parties (including two connected parties). Pursuant
to the joint venture agreement, the joint venture shareholders
agreed to co-invest in construction and operation of the
concentrated solar power stations in Zhangbei, Hebei in
two phases with a total installed capacity of 100MW by
establishing Zhongxin Zhangbei Solar Energy Thermal Power
Generation Co., Ltd (“Solar Energy Thermal Power”).

Annual Report 2015
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Growth Strategies (Continued)
Power Aspect (Continued)

The total investment of the concentrated solar power
stations is expected to be RMBS3,400.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,148.0 million), of which RMB1,800.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,196.0 million) shall
be applied to its first phase of the construction of a 50MW
demonstration power station with a construction period of 24
months. Whereas the second phase of the construction of a
50MW commercial power station shall proceed only after the
demonstration power station is to be proven to have met the
expected technical indicator. The construction period of the
second phase is 18 months. The registered capital of Solar
Energy Thermal Power is RMB1,000.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,220.0 million). Taizhou Yinjian shall
contribute RMB150.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$183.0 million) for an equity interest of 15% in Solar
Energy Thermal Power.

On 19 February 2016, the proposed establishment of Solar
Energy Thermal Power and the investment in the construction
of the concentrated solar power stations was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting. As of the date of this annual
report, the concentrated solar power station project was
amongst the projects accepted by the selection committee.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Growth Strategies (Continued)
Petrochemical Products Aspect

The Integration Project undergone by Zhong Hai You Qi is
progressing to the final and completion stage. The Integration
Project is a renovation project aiming at expanding production
capacity and extending products line. The renovation
project composing a portfolio of nine principal production
devices, a storage and transportation system and the related
supporting public engineering system, amongst which the
major production devices include an oil refinery device with
a 3,000,000 tons per year capacity, a fuel oil device with a
1,700,000 tons per year capacity, a hydrocracking device
with a 1,500,000 tons per year capacity and a lubricant
oil device with a 600,000 tons per year capacity. The
construction works of the Integration Project was commenced
in mid-year 2013 and is expected to be completed in mid-
year 2016. The Integration Project will enable Zhong Hai
You Qi to produce a full range of petrochemical products
including liquid gas, lubricant oil, fuel oil (diesel) and solvent
oil, covering over 90% of the products output with an output
volume of approximately 4,000,000 tons per year.

Zhong Hai You Qi has been utilising its internal resources
and bank financing for the construction of the Integration
Project in the early stages of construction. To satisfy the
funding need for the next stages of construction of the
Integration Project in 2015, the Group has advanced, on a
pro rata basis, RMB279.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$348.9 million) to TZ Dong Thai in April 2015. TZ Dong
Thai will then injected RMB200.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$250.0 million) as capital to Zhong Hai You
Qi to meet the funding need of the Integration Project.

TZ United East had completed the construction of the
Binjiang Project. Currently the Board is working hard to
secure long-term and stable supply of crude oil for the
project. The Board is confident that having securing the
supply of crude oil, TZ United East will advance to a higher
platform and will bring in a stable recurring profit to the
Group.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS EE# KEIRE

Financial Review
Exchange Exposure

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in HKD and RMB. Moreover, the
Board is capable of maintaining a net monetary asset position
denominated in RMB for the Group. Therefore, the Board
is confident that the Group’s exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations in respect of RMB will not have material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group given that the
RMB to HKD exchange rate is maintained at a relatively
stable range. In addition, the Board does not anticipate that
there is any material exchange exposure in respect of other
currencies.

In the opinion of the Board, the one-time small degree of
depreciation of the RMB exchange rate in early August 2015
does not have material adverse effect on the financial position
of the Group. However, the Board will closely monitor the
future development of the RMB exchange rate and will take
appropriate correction actions as necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no material
liability denominated in other foreign currencies other than
RMB. There was also no hedging transaction contracted for
by the Group during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group pledged certain
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings, land use
right and loan receivable with embedded derivative with an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately HK$2,294.0 million (2014: HK$2,397.2 million),
HK$195.0 million (2014: HK$259.8 million), HK$199.6 million
(2014: HK$216.3 million) and HK$736.9 million (2014: nil)
respectively to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group and other payable to an independent third party.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group also pledged
approximately HK$30.0 million (2014: HK$33.8 million)
bank deposits to secure settlements for certain of Group’s
purchase of raw materials and property, plant and equipment.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Financial Review (Continued)

Working Capital & Borrowings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$2,605.9 million
in aggregate. The composition of these borrowings is
summarized below:

MO E)
EEESREEH
RABEMR AEBEZ2BERLBOAB

2,605,900,000 8 JT ° #% F & & #) 4H AX 48 4%
LUNNE

HK$ million Percentage

BHE5T AL

Short term borrowings REEE 1,369.6 53%
Long term borrowings REEE 1,236.3 47%
Total B 2,605.9 100%

Interests for all borrowings were charged at fixed and floating
rates ranging from 2.23% per annum to 8.84% per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and
bank balances (included pledged bank deposits) was
approximately HK$489.7 million in aggregate. The Group’s
net borrowings was approximately HK$2,116.2 million. The
Group’s net current assets was approximately HK$150.4
million. In addition, the Group has unutilised banking facilities
of approximately HK$1,176.8 million in aggregate. Based
on the foregoing, the Board is confident that the Group has
adequate working capital to meet daily operations and to
finance future expansion. Despite the foregoing, the Board
will seek to dispose short and medium term investments
to replenish funds in order to further increase the Group’s
working capital to a stronger level.

At the end of the reporting period, the Gearing Ratio
(calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company) and Current Ratio (calculated as
current assets over current liabilities) of the Group were
38.4% (2014: 35.0%) and 1.1x (2014: 1.4x) respectively.
Both ratios are maintained at good level.
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Capital Structure

At the end of the reporting period, the shareholders’ fund of
the Group decreased by approximately HK$568.7 million to
approximately HK$6,790.2 million (2014: HK$7,358.9 million),
representing a decrement of approximately 7.7%. The
decrease was mainly due to the loss for the year amounting
to approximately HK$65.8 million, payment of dividend
amounting to approximately HK$115.2 million and the
exchange loss amounting to approximately HK$383.5 million
on translating PRC subsidiaries and associates at the end of
the reporting period caused by RMB depreciation.

During the year, the Company paid approximately HK$115.2
million to shareholders of the Company as final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Human Resources

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed 1,399
(2014: 1,365) employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
The Group offers its employees competitive remuneration
packages, which are consistent with the prevailing market
practices. The Group’s remuneration policies remain
unchanged during the year. Total staff costs for the year was
approximately HK$191.1 million (2014: HK$192.0 million).
The reason for the slight decrease in total staff cost was
mainly due to the fact that the effect of capitalizing staff cost
incurred during the five-months test production period of TZ
United East amounting to approximately HK$37.9 million in
cost of construction in progress had exceeded the effect of
annual increment in salaries.

Final Dividend

In light of the loss incurred for the year, the Board has
resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$0.05
per share). The Board will endeavor to resume payment of
dividend soonest possible.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Compliance with the Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders for their
support and all the Group’s employees for their hard work

and dedication in carrying out their duties and in achieving
the Group’s business goal.

By order of the Board of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Gao Jian Min
Executive Director & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/T

Executive Directors
Gao Jian Min Managing Director

Mr. Gao, aged 56, was appointed as an executive director
and served as the Managing Director of the Company on
22 June 1993. He is also appointed as directors of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Gao is also an executive
director of Jiangxi Copper Co., Ltd (“diangxi Copper”) (Stock
code: 358) and Qingling Motors Co. Ltd. (“Qingling Motors”)
(Stock code: 1122), the H shares of both companies are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Gao graduated from the Qing Hua
University with a bachelor degree in engineering. He has over
25 years of experience in finance, industrial investment and
property investment and development.

Liu Tianni Deputy Managing Director

Mr. Liu, aged 52, was appointed an executive director of the
Company on 26 May 2001. Mr. Liu is the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company. Mr. Liu is also a director of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Liu is an executive director and
the chairman of Wonderful Sky Financial Group Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1260), which shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He graduated from the Beijing Normal
University with a master’s degree in science in 1990. Mr. Liu
is also an independent non-executive director of Chongging
Iron & Steel Company Limited (Stock code: 1053), Qingling
Motors (Stock code: 1122) and Luoyang Glass Company
Limited (stock code: 1108), the H shares of which are all
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Liu has over 15 years of
experience in corporate administration and trade businesses,
in the financial investment sector as well as the financial
public relations sector. Mr. Liu also has extensive experience
in capital markets, post-listing corporate financings, and
mergers and acquisitions.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/T

Executive Directors (Continued)
Gu Jianguo

Mr. Gu, aged 583, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 25 May 1999. Mr. Gu is currently a
Vice President of China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (“China Cinda”) (formerly known as China Cinda Asset
Management Corporation) (Stock code: 1359), which H
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange). China Cinda is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Gu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering from the Zhejiang University
of Technology (formerly known as Zhejiang Institute of
Technology) in 1984, a master’s degree in economics from
the Zhejiang University in 1991 and a doctoral degree in
economics from the Research Institute for Fiscal Science
of the MOF in 1994, Until 31 December 2012, he was an
executive director of Cinda International Holdings Limited
(“Cinda International”) (Stock code: 111) which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He has over 20 years of
experiences in commercial and investment banking, business
management, and financial accounting and management.

Non-executive Directors
Chen Xiaozhou Chairman

Mr. Chen, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company and was elected the Chairman of the Board on
13 February 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He was redesignated as a non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 20086.
Mr. Chen is currently a member of the senior management
of China Cinda (Stock code: 1359) and is responsible for
the investment and asset management business of China
Cinda. Until 19 January 2015, Mr. Chen was the chairman
and executive director of Cinda International (Stock code:
111), which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chen graduated from the Hangzhou University in 1983 with
a bachelor’'s degree in economics, the Graduate School of
Finance Research Institute of the People’s Bank of China in
1988 with a master’s degree in economics and the University
of New South Wales in Australia in 2002 with a master’s
degree in business. Mr. Chen has over 25 years of experience
in the banking and finance sectors.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/N

Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hui Xiao Bing Vice-chairman

Mr. Hui, aged 62, was appointed an executive director of
the Company and was elected vice-chairman of the Board
on 22 June 1993. He was redesignated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 September 2006. Mr. Hui was
the deputy managing director of China Everbright Financial
Holdings Limited and was also the president of China
Construction Bank, Shenzhen Branch. He previously worked
for the Research Centre for Economic Development of the
State Council of the PRC and China Investment Consultancy
Company. He has over 25 years of experience in banking and
finance. Mr. Hui graduated from the Inner Mongolia Industrial
University with a bachelor degree in engineering. Mr. Hui is
currently the chairman and chief executive officer of Huiheng
Medical, Inc. (Stock Code: HHGM.OB) which shares are
traded on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the Nasdaq
in the USA.

Chen Qiming Vice-chairman

Mr. Chen, aged 53, was appointed a non-executive director
and vice-chairman of the Board of the Company on 15
February 2012. He is a senior engineer in the PRC. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in engineering
from the East China University of Metallurgy in 1984 and
a master’'s degree in economics from the University of
International Business and Economics in 2003. Mr. Chen
joined CGN Power Co., Ltd. (“CGN Power”) (formerly China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd.), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, in 1996 and served various
positions including head of the construction contract division
of Ling Ao Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of CGN
Power, manager of the contract procurement department of
Liaoning Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., manager of
the contract and procurement department of China Nuclear
Power Engineering Co., Ltd. and the deputy general manager
and general manager of the capital operation department
of CGN Power. Mr. Chen is also a non-executive director
of CGN Mining Company Limited (Stock Code: 1164) and
CGN Meiya Power Holdings Co., Ltd (Stock code: 1811), the
shares of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chen has over 15 years of experience in the power
industry.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/T

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 63, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 4 May 2000. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Sichuan International Studies University in 1979. He was the
General Manager of CITIC Central Tanshi Money Brokering
Company Limited, which is a joint venture of CITIC Trust Co.,
Ltd. engaged in the money brokering business for financial
institutions. From 1987 to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the executive
vice president and treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited,
responsible for both the Treasury and International Business.
From 1974 to 1987, he worked for Bank of China and CITIC
Industrial Bank. Mr. Zhang has engaged in the banking sector
for over 35 years.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang, aged 62, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 28 February 2014. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Liang was a director and the
general manager of China Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited
and has retired. He is also an executive director of Jiangxi
Copper (Stock code: 358) which H shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang has abundant experience in
international trading and investment.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 51, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Hung is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and is a
Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He is also a
Certified Tax Adviser and a member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Hung received his bachelor degree in
social sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1990,
and a master degree in corporate governance from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. Mr. Hung is an
independent non-executive director of Cinda International
(Stock code: 111). Mr. Hung was also appointed independent
non-executive director of Century Sage Scientific Holdings
Limited (“Century Sage”) (Stock code: 1450) and China
Animation Characters Company Limited (“China Animation”)
(Stock code: 1566) on 13 June 2014 and 12 March 2015
respectively. The shares of Cinda International, Century Sage
and China Animation are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Hung has over 20 years of experience in the accounting
and audit sector.
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Kwok Chung Lun

Mr. Kwok, aged 61, joined the Company in July 1995.
Mr. Kwok is one of the Deputy General Managers of the
Company. He is responsible for the Group’s property
development and investment in the mainland China. He is also
the Managing Director of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Ltd., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Kwok pursued study in the People’s University. Mr. Kwok
has over 20 years of experience in property investment and
development.

Mr. Kwok has retired on 31 December 2015.

Chow Kwok Wai

Mr. Chow, aged 49, is the company secretary and one of the
Deputy General Managers of the Company. He is responsible
for the finance and accounting matters of the Group. Mr.
Chow joined the Company in October 1993 and was an
executive director of the Company during the period from 20
April 2004 to 28 December 2013. Mr. Chow was appointed
company secretary of the Company on 28 December 2013.
Mr. Chow has worked in Price Waterhouse, which is now
known as PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has accumulated
valuable audit experience there. Mr. Chow received his
bachelor degree in social sciences from the University
of Hong Kong in 1990. Mr. Chow is a Fellow Member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Certified Tax Adviser and a Fellow
Member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, financial
management and corporate finance. Mr. Chow is also an
independent non-executive director of Lijun International
Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 2005) which
H shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and Youyuan
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2268) which
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-
executive director of Cinda International (Stock code: 111)
which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursue this business approach by managing its
businesses prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group maintains a continuous dialogue with
stakeholders that include customers, employees, regulators
and the public. The Group seeks to balance the views and
interests of these various stakeholders through constructive
conversations with a view to charting a course for the long-
term prosperity of the Group and the communities.

Customers

Customer feedback plays an important role in the operation
of the Group. Various channels are established to maintain
interactive communications between tenants and the Group.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Group treasures its loyal and industrious
staff members. In addition, it adopts non-discriminatory hiring
and employment practices and strives to provide a safe and
healthy workplace.

Government & Public

Tough efforts are exerted to ensure compliance with the
laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. The public at large is also an important stakeholder
of the Group. A stable and prosperous community is
important to the steady growth and long-term future
prospects of the Group.
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Workplace Quality

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 1,399 staff
members. Total employee costs for the year ended 31
December 2015, including directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$191.1 million.

The quality of the employees of the Group is crucial to
maintaining a competitive position in the market. With this
in mind, the Group seeks to attract and retain talented
individuals committed to achieving goals and objectives in
a work environment that nurtures values such as fair play,
respect and integrity. The Group sees career development
an important aspect of its staffs and provides ongoing
training, according to the needs of the Group. Compensation
packages are competitive, and individuals are rewarded
according to performance plus an annually-reviewed
framework of salary, working conditions, bonuses and
incentive systems. Benefits include medical cover, mandatory
provident funds, share options scheme.

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all
applicable health and safety laws and regulations. Health
and safety considerations are incorporated into the design,
operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided appropriate job skills and safety
training and are educated with regard to their responsibilities
for achieving the health and safety objectives of the Group.
The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues.

Environmental Protection

Energy saving measures are enforced in the Group’s offices
and commercial premises for the purpose of achieving
reduction of electricity consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions.

The Group adopted policies to promote recycling and use
of eco-friendly stationery, plus a series of measures to save
paper and energy, resulted in more efficient use of resources,
as well as reduction of waste.
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Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a code of conduct to
which they are required to adhere. The code of conduct
explicitly prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting
or offering bribes or any form of advantage. The code of
conduct also outlines the Group’s expectations on staff with
regard to conflicts of interest. All managers are expected
to communicate and instill a culture of good corporate
governance to their staffs.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establish and maintain a
standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. Except for the deviation specified below,
the Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the code mandatory provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Chen
Xiaozhou, the Chairman of the Board was out of town and is
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 22 May 2015. The Chairman will endeavor to attend
all future annual general meeting of the Company unless
unexpected or special circumstances preventing him from
doing so.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Board, led by the Chairman, steers the Group’s business
direction. The management, led by the Managing Director,
which is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, is
responsible for the Group’s management and operations.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Managing Director are clearly established and set out in
writing. The role of the Chairman and the Managing Director
are separated and are performed by different persons to
avoid concentration of authorities to one single person.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence
of an effective internal control system. The independent
non-executive directors serve the important function of
ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework.

The current Board comprises three executive directors, three
non-executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors, which composition is set out in the section headed
Corporation Information on page 3 and the biographies of
the directors are set out on page 30 to 34. The number of
independent non-executive directors represent no less than
one-third of the board members.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise and
skills to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company’s directors, Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou and
Gu Jianguo are also directors and/or senior officers within
the group of China Cinda, Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu
Tianni are also directors and shareholders of Silver Grant
Group Limited (“SG Group”) and Mr. Chen Qiming is also a
director and/or senior officer within the group of CGN Power.
China Cinda, SG Group and CGN Power are substantial
shareholders of the Company. Save for the aforesaid, there
is no relationship between members of the Board, in terms
of financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to fulfil
the requirements of the CG Code, three standing board
committees were set up under the Board: Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. When
it become necessary, the Board will set up ad hoc board
committee to handle specific issues and report back to the
Board.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation
confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There are established procedures for
directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a director arise, the matter
will be discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent non-
executive directors with no conflict of interest will be present
at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

Independent non-executive directors are explicitly identified
in all corporate communications containing the names of
the directors. An updated list of directors identifying the
independent non-executive directors and the role and the
functions of the directors is maintained on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

All directors are appointed for a specific term of service no
longer than three years. They are also subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with Article 102 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The full board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy and to
monitor the operations as well as the financial performance
of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all
directors in respect of full board meeting and the directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and the accompanying board papers in respect of full
board meeting are sent out in full to all directors no less than
three days before the meeting. Minutes of full board meeting
and meeting of board committee are properly kept. All
directors have access to relevant and timely information. They
also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing
the directors with Board papers and related materials. Where
queries are raised by the directors, prompt and full responses
will be given if possible.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

During the year, four full board meetings were held and the

attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of Director

EsgR

Exg®)

EEEARGE)

RERN REFAMREZBEESEE 5
EEMHFEREIIMT

Number of Meeting attended/held Attendance rate
HEEBRE 2HEBIRE HE=R

Executive directors
BITESE

Gao Jian Min

BER

Liu Tianni

2R A7

Gu Jianguo

BzR

Non-executive directors
HBITEE

Chen Xiaozhou

PR E

Hui Xiao Bing

BhE

Chen Qiming

PR X B

Independent non-executive

directors
BUHHITEE
Liang Qing
Zhang Lu
SR
Hung Muk Ming

HARE
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board has the power to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
The director so appointed shall hold office until the next
general meeting (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
until the next annual general meeting (in the case of new
addition to the Board) following his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election. In other cases, all directors,
including the Chairman, Vice Chairmen and Managing
Director, shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years at annual general meetings and be eligible for re-
election.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement
the board diversity policy, where selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives as set
out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the
Board.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

An analysis of the board diversity based on a range of
diversity perspectives is set out below:

Exg®)
EsgsnibBEAE)

B— RS RIE BRI 2 B S
ESTIAHTRFIMT -

9

8 Executive

Dir/e_ctors

7 HITES
6
Number of 5
Directors 4

EE8HE
3
2
1
0
Designation Age Group
i 4V FHRA R

Corporate Governance Committee

The CG Code recommends listed company to set up a
corporate governance committee to look after issues relating
to corporate governance. However, the Directors consider
that it is more appropriate and more efficient for the Company
to retain in the Board the function of overseeing corporate
governance issues. The Directors will continuously review
and improve the Company’s and the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure that business activities and
decision-making processes are regulated in a proper and
prudent manner.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
corporate governance duties performed by the Board were
mainly set out below:

—  reviewed the corporate governance practices;

— reviewed the continuous professional development and
training of the directors;

— reviewed compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conducts regarding directors’ securities transactions.
All directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined in
the CG Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of
reference that conform to the provisions of the CG Code. The
written terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The current Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming
(Committee chairman), Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectivity of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s external auditors in
matters coming within the scope of its terms of reference and
keeps under review the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit Committee
includes the review of the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2014, the internal control system of the Group
for 2014 and the interim results for the period ended 30 June
2015. On 21 March 2016, the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2015 have also been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
considered that it is effective and adequate for the time
being.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, two audit committee meetings were held and
the attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of director

Number of meetings attended/held

ExgE)

EREEE(E)

ERZBEFANATCHAMAREE  TKEZ
hE R

Attendance rate

BEEBS HEGBEAE 2R RE HfE =&
Hung Muk Ming 2/2 100%
PN

Liang Qing 2/2 100%
Zhang Lu 2/2 100%
o 1%

Remuneration Committee FMEES

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted a written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the CG
Code. The written terms of reference is set out in detail on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
current Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (Committee
chairman) and Mr. Liang Qing.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to ensure that there is no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration and that the
Company has an equitable and competitive remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent persons to serve the
Company. The Board has adopted the model where the
Remuneration Committee performs an advisory role to
the Board (i.e. make recommendations to the Board on
the remunerations packages of individual director and
senior management). The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
managements’ remuneration and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package for each employee is structured
according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration
package will contain a combination or modification of some
or all of the following four main components:

1.  Basic salary

Basic salary ranges for each position are established
with reference to the responsibilities and the duties
attached to the position. The actual salary for the
person filling the position is determined based on the
experience and ability of the individual selected for the
position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison
to comparable positions at competitors in the relevant
industry. The actual salaries of employees are reviewed
annually and may be adjusted from time to time based
on the cost of living and financial performance of the
Company.

Salaries are base remuneration and not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components
of the remuneration plan.
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Board of Directors (Continued) BEER(E)

Remuneration Committee (Continued) FHNEER(E)

2. Incentive bonus 2. EEMAT
Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate RENEEA R ERE B &R RIER
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee Mo BREEBMEMEREIASKE
is determined with reference to his position and his/her B Kb, WA F A RIBIMET E o

performance during the year.

3. Share option 3. BERE
Share options to subscribe for shares in the Company EFgn fHBPBEREERHER
are granted to employees from time to time at the - HREARQRIRG - RiEE B EE
discretion of the Board, in order to retain valuable METIWHBE THEES N TE-
employees and to motivate future performance of the
employees.
Share options granted to individual employee EARE TERMERESE KRER
are determined with reference to his position, his il ~ RIRE ARG BEKFTENER
performance and his ability to contribute to the overall MmEE °

success of the Group.

However, the Group does not have any Share Option SR AN B B R8T TR BB A E
Scheme inforce for the time being. BEIE

4.  Other benefits 4. HmEF
The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory AREBNERX~EZE/@ AT ERERE A
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement HEFREERHEEENR, R H
scheme, employee compensation and medical MEEA - IETRARESEHE - EER
insurance, paid annual leaves and child education B BINEERE BHFFRETFX
allowance, with reference to the prevailing practices in A= -

relevant jurisdictions.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review the FTHMEEerHEHEREMNARRNAD
Company’s human resources matters and remuneration BREERFHEE -FTHEESFANEH
policies. During the year, two Remuneration Committee MAGE & g%@%@ﬁﬁi/\i’]*ﬁﬂj%a‘#

meetings were held in the presence of all committee
members.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited IREBBREEER AT
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the approval of the annual
salary adjustments for the year 2016 and the payment of
discretional performance bonus and director fees to the
executive and non-executive directors for year ended 31
December 2015 after taking into consideration the results
of the Group, the performance of the directors, the senior
management and the employees and the prevailing market
practices.

Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 15
February 2012 (“Nomination Committee”) and adopted written
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee. The written
terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The current Nomination
Committee comprises the chairman of the Board who also
act as the chairman of the committee and two independent
non-executive directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung
Muk Ming.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of directors either to fill casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company, any director
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until
to the next general meeting or as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until to the next annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least every three years and shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitably qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for its consideration. The process for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria are based
mainly on the assessment of their characters and their
professional qualifications and experience relevant to the
Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board periodically,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment and re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held in the presence of all committee members for the
purpose of reviewing the Board structure and the diversity of
Board members.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to

indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training

Each newly appointed director, executive or non-executive, is
provided with a director’s induction package to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The director’s induction package include an overview of
the Group’s business operation and governance policies,
the director’s responsibilities and duties, relevant regulatory
requirements and briefing with the senior management of the
Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
year, all directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending
training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the director’s duties and responsibilities. All
directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the continuous
professional development requirement of the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

The training attended by each director of the current Board
during the year is summarized below.

Type of trainings (Note 1)

Exg®)

BB R IE ()

REEEe ARG EZEZROT AL M
T e

Training matters (Note 2)

Name of director BEEHS BINFRAHET) BINEE A HZ2)
Executive directors BITESH
Gao Jian Min SRR a, b i, i, iv
Liu Tianni PN a, b i, i, iv
Gu Jianguo A2 a, b i, i, il v
Non-executive directors HHITEE
Chen Xiaozhou g a, b i, i, i, iv
Hui Xiao Bing BN a b i, i, iv
Chen Qiming &R 25 B a, b i i, dii, iv
Independent non-executive BV HHITEE

directors
Liang Qing 2E a, b i, i, dii
Zhang Lu SR 3% a,b i, i, iv
Hung Muk Ming PN a, b i, i, iii
Note 1: Kt 1 -
a: attending seminar or training session a: HE I e R IERTE
b:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to economy, b: BESEHLE —RESIESBERERSE

general business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.

Note 2:
corporate governance
ii. regulatory
iii. finance and accounting
iv. managerial
The Company also received confirmation from the Company

Secretary that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during the year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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General Meetings

During the year, the Company has convened one general
meeting representing the Annual General Meeting. The
attendance of each director is set out below.

RERXE

FA - ARABAR—RRRAEGIRERBIR
BEXE - KFEFHEBREIWOT -

Number of general meetings
attended/held

Attendance rate

Directors 2= ERE, EWRERY HER
Executive directors HITEE
Gao Jian Min =SER 1/1 100%
Liu Tianni 2R 0/1 0%
Gu Jianguo JEE 32 Y 0/1 0%
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Chen Xiaozhou eI 0/1 0%
Hui Xiao Bing BN 0/1 0%
Chen Qiming FR B 0/1 0%
Independent non-executive BV HHITEE

directors
Liang Qing 2E 0/1 0%
Zhang Lu ok 3% 0/1 0%
Hung Muk Ming PN 1/1 100%
Auditor’s Remuneration ZEETE &

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2015, were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) at a total fees of HK$2.8 million
including under-provided audit fee for previous year. The
said audit fee was approved by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board. In addition, the Group also paid
fees of not more than HK$0.1 million in aggregate to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the provision of taxation services during
the 2015.

The Audit Committee considers that the taxation services did
not (in terms of the nature of the services and the amount of
fees paid in relation to the audit fees) affect the independence
of Deloitte.
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Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
below:

FE4E R (BT)

Remuneration Bands (HK$)

BREEASHN
BZE2016F12A31ALEFE  RMEERA
B HMARMT :

Number of persons

AE

2,500,001 to 3,000,000
7,500,001 to 8,000,000

2,500,001 £ 3,000,000
7,500,001 % 8,000,000

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer
to those employees other than directors.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the
state of the affairs, results and cash flow of the Group for
that year in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure
provision of the Listing Rules.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis. Up to the date of this report, the directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties that will seriously
affect the going concern basis of the Group.

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company. The
directors also have general responsibilities for setting up
an appropriate internal control system, which is mainly to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The directors have reviewed the
internal control system of the Group and are satisfied that the
internal control system of the Group is functioning properly.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

i LAPAREMSRERABNIEESUIM
EE -

ESERRENETES

EXeRAHYSMRFEMFHOHALQE
MBHRERNEE  ZFVHRREELEH
FREEMRRNEERE - B RRA
SERZFENEBNN - RELBRER

ERHEE2015F12A31 B EFE 24
AU BmEAE EECERASEMTHK
ROUERER: RAEENEBHERE
HRIRBAGTEL  FHBERESENH
BIGE  RIZRBELEEERHVBHERE
HEAREAL B2V TERTABSE
EMTERBELEEENERTERERE -

EENAERTFEENETLE  EREM
By ] B 2 T ZE B b S AR S 5% (B O B A5 IR0 ©
EENTEARETRIBENANIEEZR
o HEIZEMNAREAEEEESRR R
BEREEALHEMAIENTR EFCR
BAKBNABEZERRLRRAEENA
SR RRIT 2B



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &8 &

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirements under the
CG Code.

Convening General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) may request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to
568 of the Companies Ordinance.

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from members of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meeting. Such requests must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include
the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing
at the registered office of the Company at Suite 4901, 49th
Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in
electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.hk); and must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it. In
accordance with Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the
date on which they become subject to the requirement under
Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance and such meeting
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date
of the notice convening the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Convening General Meeting on Request (Continued)

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM
for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which
the notice convening the EGM is given, the shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general
meetings are to be convened by the directors.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders can raise enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of
the Company at Suite 4901, 49/F, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings

To put forward a resolution at an annual general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements
and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the
Companies Ordinance.

Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (a) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at
least 50 members who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.
Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company
at Suite 4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Board) or in electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.
hk); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later
than (i) 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting. Section 616 of the Companies
Ordinance provides that the Company that is required under
Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance to give notice of
a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own
expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting (a) in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

Annual Report 2015

IRERERI(45)
RBRRBFASLRHER

R RBEFAE LIRE—BREE IR
BAKBATHEDISE 615 1§ K% 616 {F1ETT -

NAMEBIE 615 RETHH - A AT E AT
REZER - BRBLERZFR 2B - A
BENZABN(EEBEREZERMET
ZRFEFRE L RZARRREZRRE
ZHEEZEEEL25% 2 ARNFB/RE  H(b)
BL0RBRAEZERFMBT ZREBAF
AELERZRBREEZRE - BEEK(a)
ARANAERXGERXFERRD T 2 M
FE MU ARBETBEE1RERES
WMARIBI0B 4001 E - THEST S RIM
N HEFHEAN(BEBEEHZE cs@silvergrant.
comhk) ERXARA : (b)BIEEEFHLR
MATAT 2 RER (o) ALIIREZERZA
TRE RA)BERTEBITERBEEAR
NAE: (VZEREAT 2RRBEFAGRT
Az 6EEHZ AT sl AemMELZ
B o AEERBIZE 616 6KFTRA « IR IZE D A&
FOISRERERAZRBLABNZARARA
(@FRBELREBMZEAE AN &) fEE#
PZAESRMZAR  KEFLZASBEAN
% EAEBYBEATZHEARR 8BS
ZRBRZBRZXA  ZRXBEZEEKE
BRERAFASBMNZARAAIPE °

TE-RFER

59



60

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &8 &

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Proposing Director for Election at General Meetings

In respect of proposing a person for election as a director
of the Company at general meetings, please refer to the
procedures available on the website of the Company at www.
silvergrant.com.hk.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional document.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency of
shareholders’ voting in general meeting, separate resolutions
are proposed at general meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual director
and all resolutions are voted on by poll. The Company will
engage external scrutineer to count the vote. The poll voting
results will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website
and on the Company’s website at a later time on the same
business day. In addition, the requirement for resolutions to
be voted by poll is stated in the circular or annual report to
be despatched to shareholders. Moreover, at general meeting
but before voting, the chairman of the meeting will explain to
shareholders the described procedures for conducting a poll.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.
silvergrant.com.hk which enables shareholders, investors and
the general public to have an open access to the information
of the Company. Financial information and all corporate
communications of the Company are made available on the
Company’s website and are updated regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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The Board present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and
engaged in property investment and securities trading. The
Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
property investment, other investments, distressed assets
business and production and trading of petrochemical
products. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the Group’s associates are set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 76.

In light of the loss incurred for the year, the Board has

resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Business Review EBKER
The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 ANEFEE2015F12 A1 BILFENER
December 2015 is set out below: ERORIENT
Section in the Page No. of the
Annual Report Annual Report
HIRNEHR 2 B0 FHEH
a. Fair view of the Company’s business Managing Director’s Statements 51029
HARREBNTEER EERARLERE 5229
b. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing Directors’ Report 63 to 64
the Company Sk 63 £ 64
HARAEENEERRE LT AR R T
C. Particulars of important events affecting the Company that ~ Directors’ Report 63 to 64
have occurred since the year ended 31 December 2015 EF&@H{E 63 % 64

EHZE2015F12 A31 BIFFEREBEEN - ANRHE
FEMNEREHNFE

d. Indication of likely future development in the Company’s Managing Director’s Statements 22 to 25
business EEHEERE 22% 25
ARAIEBIEE BN ARRERNIBER
e. Analysis using financial key performance indicators Managing Director’s Statements, 2103
BANGARKRRERETN ST Financial Summary 2%3
EEFLGER
BIBHER
f. Discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and 36 to 38
performance Governance 36 £ 38
HARRANRBBE RRRORA B HERER
g. An account of the Company’s key relationships with its Environmental, Social and 36 to 38
employees, customers and suppliers and others that have Governance 36 %38
a significant impact on the Company and on which the RE e kEh

Company’s success depend

ARAIHEES  BEERMEFANEZEBAENFAURER
AEFEATHANEMATHEZHERNHA : ZALT
HARRBBERTE MALANEBRERZAL

h. Discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant ~ Managing Director’s Statements, 510 29,
laws and regulations that have significant impact on the Corporate Governance Report, 39 to 60,
Company Directors’ Report 61to 73

HARNBETHARAREAZENEAEELRIINERL EEALERE 5229
R PEERERS - 39ZE60
BEewms 61E73
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Key Risk Factors

The following paragraphs list out the key risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and
there may be other risks and uncertainties further to the key
risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual report does
not constitute a recommendation or an advice for anyone
to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the
securities of the Company.

Risk Pertaining to the Property Market on the Mainland

The Group has material interests in residential and
commercial property investment on the mainland and
is therefore subject to the risks associated with China’s
property market. The Group’s operations on the mainland
may also be exposed to the risks of policy change, interest
rate change, demand-supply imbalance, and the overall
economic conditions, which may pose an adverse impact
on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk
factors distinctive to direct investment, property investment
and property related businesses. Default on the part of
our buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of operations. Additionally,
accidents may happen despite systems and policies set up
for their prevention, which may lead to financial loss, litigation
or damage in reputation.
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Policy Risks

The Group’s principal operating activities are in the mainland
China. The mainland market operates a system of planned
economy. New laws and regulations are launched from time
to time to regulate and/or promote economic activities. The
enactment of any new regulatory policies may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of operations.

International Crude Oil Prices Risks

A principal operation of the Group is the manufacturing
and sale of petrochemical products. Crude oil is the
critical raw material for production process. Significant
fluctuations in international crude oil prices and persistent
drop in international crude oil prices will have a material
adverse impact on the operating result in respect of sales of
petrochemical products.

Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operation of the Group
as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual result
may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group
nor the directors, employees or agents of the Group assume
any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of the
forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialize
or turns out to be incorrect.
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Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31
December 2015. Surplus on revaluation of the leasehold land
and buildings amounted to approximately HK$12,659,000
has been credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

During the year, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties at 31 December 2015. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been charged
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
amounted to approximately HK$36,893,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group at 31
December 2015 are set out in the section under “Summary of
Investment Properties” of this Annual Report.

Charitable Donations

Donations to charitable organisations by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB680,000
(equivalent approximately HK$850,000).

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2015 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$503,765,000.

Equity Linked Agreements

No equity linked agreements were entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)
Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)
Gu Jianguo

Non-executive directors

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)
Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive directors
Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

The term of office of each director, including the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs. Gao Jian Min, Hui Xiao Bing and
Zhang Lu shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and they, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. The remaining directors shall remain in office.

Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed
“Directors”, the persons who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report included Mr. Gao Jian Min, Mr. Liu
Tianni, Mr. Sung Yeung Leon, Mr. Chow Kwok Wai, Mr. Kwok
Chung Lun, Mr. /5f&7, Mr. Chen Yongcun, Ms. Fu Bo, Ms.
GROMEE, Ms. Wong Wa, Mr. =78, Mr. SREM, Mr. BEEE,
Ms. SRH#RF, Mr. SRAF, Mr. 2R, Mr. fRIE, Mr. Ma Hon
Yeung, Mr. BXfzMEEE, Mr. Z=E58, Mr. £, Mr. %2, Ms.
ZEH, Mr. =%, Ms. AEE, Ms. {#3#f, Mr. Lu Chuan and
Ms. Zhu Feng.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Change in Profile of Directors

Change in director’s biographical details which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rules 13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules, is set out below:

Chen Xiaozhou

With effect from 19 January 2015, Mr. Chen Xiaozhou ceased
to act as the executive director and the chairman of the
board of Cinda International Holdings Limited (Stock code:
111) which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang Qing ceased to act as a director and the general
manager of China Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited with
effect from 1 January 2015 following his retirement.

Hung Muk Ming

With effect from 12 March 2015, Mr. Hung Muk Ming was
appointed independent non-executive director of China

Animation Characters Company Limited (Stock code: 1566),
which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Interest in Shares

As at 31 December 2015, none of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company nor any of its associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register
as required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the
directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had been granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporation, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and neither the directors nor the chief executive
nor any of their spouse or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company or his
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any part
of the Company’s business was entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, subject to
the statutes, every director of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereon. The Company has arranged appropriate
liability insurance to indemnify its directors and officers in
respect of legal actions against the directors.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2015, persons other than a director or
chief executive of the Company having interest in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 are set out below:

EEEHN

EARFER - REEBBEAMNI  AAFALE
WEBEBIEFPEAERHENRITXNETFA
BEENITHAR -

BESFZRERX

BRERARAF 2 EEERRMA - AREIZ2E4
EEOERMAMBERNTERMNKE L AR
ZBERRIYIBHEA AR ZBRIOR
REM BEEARRAREEEFRE - AR
AEZHEEEERB USRS HEEHER
FAMEENEREASEHBERSE -

FERR

R2015F 12 A31 B - RARFRIRIEBEES K
HIERPIZE 36 KMEETFENELMEL
BTN BARARESHIZETHABMN
N BB ARRAIE BEITIRAS% 3 A £
WAL

MR2015F 12 A31 H @ RAR A1) K8
B F B S FI T

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity ordinary shares  Total interests EE2BeRT

TERRER L) EERROEE G Enb ok RAEBD

Silver Grant Group Limited Beneficial owner 277,114,022 277,114,022 12.02%
REEEBRAA ExBEA (Note i)
(Hti)

China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd Interest of controlled corporation 438,056,000 438,056,000 19.01%
HEEEEEERRHEB AT REGEE RS (Note i)
(Hstii)

China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding  Interest of controlled corporation 364,140,000 364,140,000 15.80%
Co,, Ltd. G ERES (Note i)
HEERZEREERAT (Krstin)
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni, both of whom are
directors of the Company, each has a 30% interest in Silver
Grant Group Limited as at 31 December 2015.

i. The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of the
Company held by China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd:

FTERR(E)
SERERAERBRGELRE  BEHEBEART]
EE R2015F12 A1 BEEHERESE
BARAE 30%ES -

i. MNUTRTEEFEZEEAEEERONDERARME
BARRBZ B Angs :

Total interest in shares

ROEREH
Name of controlled Name of controlling Percentage Direct Indirect
corporation shareholder of control interest interest
ZEEEER EERREE ZEHEs = HiEEs BEES
Well Kent International China Cinda Asset Management 100% - 438,056,000
Investment Company Limited Co., Ltd
EREBRIRERRAF FREEEEEEERNDBRAR

Regent Star International Limited Well Kent International
ERBEBRERAA Investment Company Limited
ERHRIRERRAA

iii. The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of the
Company held by China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding

Co., Ltd.:

Name of controlled Name of controlling
corporation shareholder

ZEEEER EERRERE

100% 438,056,000 -

i. UTRTEERZEEEEGRARMFAR
NRLZ B RS ANED

Total interest in shares

RSB
Percentage Direct Indirect
of control interest interest
ZEHES = HiEER BEER

CGNPC International Limited China Guangdong Nuclear
R EZEEER AR Power Holding Co., Ltd.
PREERZEEEBR AR

Other than as disclosed above, the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2015.
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Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

Connected Transaction

A service agreement dated 28 December 2004 was entered
into between Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”) and the Company.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions set out therein, the
Company agreed to employ and Mr. Gao agreed to serve the
Company as a Managing Director by providing the Company
with the services as described in the service agreement for a
term of three years from 28 December 2004 to 27 December
2007, which term shall continue thereafter until determined
by either party giving to the other not less than 3-months
prior written notice.

Buy-Back, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries bought back, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at
Boardroom 3 & 4, Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance Harbour
View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Monday, 23 May 2016 at 11:00 a.m. (the “Annual
General Meeting”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, during
the year and up to the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income from leasing
of properties, dividend income from listed and unlisted
securities, income from property management and income
from production and trading of petrochemical products.

The accumulated amount of purchases and revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
and revenue for the year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

< BUR

AEERENMEBRRDHFTMEZESLIE
EHINGE - BEREENGIE -

ARBEENMEVHFHEESKERA
NAEIMEEEE  AARBERAHERNT
SEHREE °

BRRBFRE

KAFKR2016F5 H28H(E#8—) £F
TRBREEEEFELEE-—RAEEERE
SEEEEeRE-_NNETREAFAS
(IREBFERE]) -

N

RBRFRENEHM

BREARAREHRFAENRLEEMA
B-RFARBERARER  AARNHEE
TRONERALEB EMRAUBTHRELZ

25% NRIFRE o

EFREFRHER

AEENBABSHEMEZHEESEA - L

mEFLTREFZREBA - MEEEWA
RAMIETEREERHEERA -

FAAEERAAHERREFPHRIER
BRELWADRIEARENREAE A
HETR30% °

REBREXBRAA



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE 4%

Closure of Register of Members

To ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members will
be closed from Thursday, 19 May 2016 to Monday, 23 May
2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Share Registrar of the Company,
Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 18 May 2016.

Event after the Reporting Period

No significant event occurring after the end of the reporting
period.

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board
Gao Jian Min
Executive Director & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B #Z S{Ef iR &

Deloitte.
=2

To the members of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 76 to 210, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT B #Z SR &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #RE#EH%E R

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
2015 2014
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FET
Property management fee income LI ESREE PN 7 220,376 203,107
Rental income HeHBA 7 86,107 81,575
Sales of petrochemical products AHtbEIERHESE 7 30,759 123,050
337,242 407,732
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A A (228,997) (284,388)
108,245 123,344
Dividend income from listed and EmkIELETMESFRBELA
unlisted securities 7 2,796 16,495
Other income, gains and losses EmUg A - Was & EE 8 118,923 241,567
Change in fair value of held-for-trading FEEERE AR EEH)
investments (41,956) 8,535
Administrative expenses T E A (297,833) (269,526)
Other expenses E & A 13 (19,124) (51,908)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & Al &R E e
investments 758 36,617
Impairment loss recognised on AHHERERRZ
available-for-sale investments RIEBE (4,323) (53,285)
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEE
properties 16 36,893 (29,858)
Change in fair value of loan receivable BB ARITAETL A 2 FEI
with embedded derivative ER2AnEE 25 41,822 51,824
Impairment loss on other receivable HAth fE Y5k 2 R B & 18 - (86,044)
Finance costs 7% & A 9 (47,990) (36,543)
Change in fair value of structured HEEHESRES CANE
finance securities g4 73 503
Gain on disposal of associates o E B A B2 W as 20 - 151,405
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XRMBARZEE 39 (5,856) —
Share of results of associates B(EHE N R EE (12,384) (55,585)
(Loss) profit before taxation bR AT (B8 ) /m A (119,956) 47 541
Taxation 1A 12 (9,861) 78,940
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)RF 13 (129,817) 126,481
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: F R (&8 ) & FIfE(L :
Owners of the Company RRBHERA (65,777) 109,367
Non-controlling interests e (64,040) 17,114
(129,817) 126,481
(Loss) earnings per share (in HK dollar) &% (E518) BF (SABTHIR)
— Basic — &K 14 (0.029) 0.047

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £4B#RREM2 EUER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ20154F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETL
(Loss) profit for the year FRUEE) R (129,817) 126,481
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hih2mWz=(HZH)
Items that will not be reclassified to HTABEAEm A HE -
profit or loss:
Gain arising on revaluation of leasehold BHEEMEEE 2 K=
properties 12,659 19,733
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEEAZERZRE (397,163) (59,337)
Income tax related to items that will not be TR EFIEE 2 M8 ER
reclassified (1,020) (1,687)
(385,524) (41,291)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently — AIREIE#EA 18522 B H -
to profit or loss:
Fair value loss arising on revaluation of AHHERESMHEE L
available-for-sale investments AR EEE (19,102) (7,326)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EREREEE
investments recycled to profit for the year 5] 488 == F A £ 4,323 15,536
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal REERHEERERET
of available-for-sale investments EEER (758) -
Share of other comprehensive expense of 2 ek l/NE]|
associates EMamES (10,535) (1,415)
Reclassification adjustments relating to REAHEGIINEERBD
foreign operations disposed of during the B
year = (804)
(26,072) 5,991
Other comprehensive expense for the year FAHEMEES S
(net of tax) (BRTi1&) (411,596) (35,300)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the FR2mE (X )5 E%58
year (541,413) 91,181
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2E () BEREN
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AKRBHEE A (453,500) 75,677
Non-controlling interests FEFE B = (87,913) 15,504
(541,413) 91,181
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B &4 R &

At 31 December 2015
R2015F 12431 H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Investment properties KREWZ 16 2,443,340 2,479,864
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE KRS 17 3,956,367 3,468,227
Land use rights T HbE AR 18 199,615 216,309
Goodwill EES 19 46,463 46,463
Interests in associates Bt N mRERS 20 743,526 562,375
Structured finance securities EEETRES 22 6,728 6,655
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 23 310,179 352,258
Loan receivables R E R 24 - 570,342
Loan receivable with embedded WERAXSTET A Z B
derivative B 25 736,866 733,844
8,443,084 8,436,337
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 558 26 107,214 20,979
Held-for-trading investment RIEEEKRE 27 112,998 —
Trade receivables JfE U BR X 28 12,950 12,776
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNREEMm
receivables FEWR 29 503,776 275,286
Amounts due from an associate JEU — KRB N Bl 21 1,149,637 900,572
Loan receivables FEWE K 24 270,012 228,137
Pledged bank deposits IR TR 30 29,988 33,762
Bank balances and cash IRTTEBRNMIRS 30 459,665 1,685,638
2,646,240 3,157,150
Assets classified as held-for-sale TIVERFEIHE 2 BE 31 205,628 337,560
2,851,868 3,494,710
TOTAL ASSETS EE®RE 11,294,952 11,931,047

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B &4 R &

At 31 December 2015
R2015F 12431 H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FET FET
EQUITY IR 2
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital AR 33 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves s 34 3,163,397 3,732,139
Equity attributable to owners of the PIN/NEIE SN ) i
Company 6,790,178 7,358,920
Non-controlling interests JEFE = 370,889 458,802
TOTAL EQUITY B EE 7,161,067 7,817,722
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Borrowings BE 35 1,236,320 1,471,787
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEE & 36 196,128 185,889
1,432,448 1,657,676
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables RERRER 37 273,792 114,257
Accrued charges, rental deposits and ~ fEsHE A - SR e R EA
other payables FETK 38 838,834 1,007,006
Borrowings = 35 1,369,567 1,100,618
Taxation payable FERT TR IR 16,828 27,268
‘ 2,499,021 2,249,149
Liabilities associated with assets SIWERHEHE 2 BEZ
classified as held-for-sale BEAE 31 202,416 206,500
2,701,437 2,455,649
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHRE 4,133,885 4,113,325
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BAEREBEE 11,294,952 11,931,047
Net current assets BREBEE 150,431 1,039,061
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEABERRBERS 8,598,515 9,475,398
The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 210 FETI6EEF2I0B I BERREEES
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of CR2016F3 A21 HR A RIREBEITI K
directors on 21 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: THEEARBEZEER
Liu Tianni 8 X} Gao Jian Min5&ZE
Director &% Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY S4B B REK

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ADTERARERE
Asset Capital Investment Non-
Share Share  revaluation ~ redemption  revaluation  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
& RBEE EEEREE EARERE REEGRE ERRE RERF At FBNER RALE
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
1 AT AT 7T 1 AT AT 7T 1 AT
(Note)
)
At 1 January 2014 R2014E151A 460,970 3,151,819 187,298 13,992 7,344 982,760 2,644,302 7,398,485 449,898 7,848,383
Profi for the year FREd - - - = = = 100,367 109,367 17,114 126,481
Other comprehensive income (expense) ~ FREM2ANE (1)

forthe year - - 18,046 - 8210 (58621) (1,325 (33.690) (1610 (35,300)
Total comprehensive income (expense)  FAZERE(KH) 4%

for the year - - 18,046 - 8210 (58,621) 108,042 75,677 15,504 91,181
Transfer upon aboltion of par value HERLRRH0E TR

under the new Hong Kong Companies ~ EIEEBIE(4239)

Ordinance (Note 33 365811 (3151819 - (13992) = = = = = =
Dhidend (Note 15] Rawitis) - - - - - - (5242 (11524 - (115242
Dividend paid to non-controling interests ~ H—FMBAR 2325

of a subsidiary Ea/BfRE - - - - = = = = (6,600) (6,600)
At 31 December 2014 2014512831 3,626,781 - 205,344 - 15,654 874,139 2,637,102 7,368,920 458,802 1817722
Loss fo he year EREE - - - - - = 165,777) 165,777) G404 (129817)
Other comprehensive income (expense)  FAEH2ERA(H)

for the year = = 11639 = 1553 (3838%5) - 08y (1159
Total comprehensive income (expense) A2 ERA(H) 4%

for the year - - 11,639 - (15,587) (383,825) 65,777) 453,500) (87,913) (641,413)
Diidend (Note 15 Ba#its) - - - = = - (59 (11520 - (152
At 31 December 2015 R2015% 12831 3,626,781 - 216,983 - 17 490,314 2,456,083 6,790,178 370,889 7,161,067

Note: Fair value change of available-for-sale investment measured
at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the
available-for-sale investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss

Hiat -

previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %Z8HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEXER
(Loss) profit before taxation BrAE AT (518 ) (119,956) 47 541
Adjustments for: THEE
Share of results of associates b Ak N 12,384 55,585
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREETE
equipment 39,814 42,341
Release of land use rights o 3 50 R R 5 4,487 4,550
Finance costs B E R 47,990 36,543
Dividend income from listed and LRI LR EWA
unlisted securities (2,796) (16,495)
Interest income M B U A (124,029) (167,110)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & At HERE U =5
investments (758) (36,617)
Impairment loss recognised on A HERERR 2
available-for-sale investments B B8 4,323 53,285
Impairment loss on other receivable Eh e BGRFER < BB 18 - 86,044
Impairment loss recognised on PR B 7ERR 2 R BB 18
interest receivable - 10,393
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKMBRAAMEE 5,856 —
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE QA - (151,405)
Net loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BEREEZ
plant and equipment =Dkt 566 258
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEED
properties (36,893) 29,858
Change in fair value of loan MAERARITETLA 2 EK
receivable with embedded BERC AR EE
derivative (41,822) (51,824)
Change in fair value of structured HEREMERES 2 ANE
finance securities e (73) (503)
Change in fair value of held-for- RIEEBEREZARELES
trading investments 41,956 (8,535)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z8HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B ZE2015F 12431 HIFF/E

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Operating cash flows before LIEE BRI
movements in working capital KEZETEIRESM (168,951) (66,091)
Increase in inventories FE®Em (87,438) (576)
(Increase) decrease in held-for-trading  #H1EE &E1E (38 Hn) i
investments (154,954) 28,367
Increase in trade receivables JFEE U5t BR SR 38 0 (907) (164)
(Increase) decrease in deposits, Ze - ERREM
prepayments and other receivables JE TR (32 0 ) ik > (101,074) 12,118
Increase in trade payables JE ST BR FREE AN 166,087 20,140
Increase (decrease) in accrued BEtER - ke R
charges, rental deposits and other o Ath A 3R a0 Ol 2>)
payables 12,521 (29,038)
Cash used in operations KA ZIRE (334,716) (35,244)
Dividend received EARE 2,796 16,495
Interest paid BARFLE (47,990) (36,543)
Tax paid SRR (9,866) (16,523)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBAAZERS
ACTIVITIES (389,776) (71,815)
Silver Grant International Industries Limited IRERREXEGRAA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %Z8HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEW
Addition of available-for-sale ENAIE I EIRE
investments (69,295) —
Purchase of property, plant and BAYE - BER&E
equipment (54,378) (832,089)
Settlement of construction costs XA R A
payable (892,394) —
Dividend received from associates B E AR IRE - 6,692
Interest received B W H B 33,043 81,252
Interest income received from loan ERMERARSTELAZ
receivable with embedded derivative U E 5 F BUA 38,800 38,800
Payments received for assets classified ZI{EI 1R E L E 2 B Wk E
as held-for-sale 127,180 140,084
Repayment from an associate —REFE R RIER 23,478 138,149
Advance to an associate B KBS N EI IR (273,622) (346,031)
Advance to third parties BRE=H (106,332) (57,039)
Repayment from a third party BRT—RFE=FH 12,582 101,394
Advance of loan receivables BT EWER - (518,986)
Receipt of loan receivables UG ER e U B 3R 482,676 683,107
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME - BEREZERS
plant and equipment IR 58 5
Proceeds on disposal of available-for- Hj’%—ﬁ,ftﬁ’iﬁ’éf
sale investments FTiS3 25,371 118,151
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary ﬁ’%*%ﬁﬁ% AIFT1S 3R 39 56,394 —
Proceeds received in respect to RAIEEHEGERRZE
disposal of jointly controlled entity in KIE
the prior year - 39,642
Capital injection to an associate M—RKEE AR ZERNEA 20 (225,984) (142,137)
Proceeds on disposal of associates S5 & A R TSR - 1,123,055
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits ~ #2EUEIRIEITIER 3,774 48,547
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z8HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ20154F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXEX(FTA)MEEERS
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (818,649) 622,596
FINANCING ACTIVITIES eSS
Other loans raised HibEREE 573,105 543,485
Repayment of other loans BEEMER (488,949) (140,000)
Bank loans raised RITERRE 1,499,339 1,728,984
Repayment of bank loans BEIRTTER (1,438,443) (1,533,908)
Dividend paid EfTRE (115,242) (115,242)
Dividend paid to non-controlling H—FRE2EHBZHBAR
interests of a non-wholly owned Z IR FIE RS 2 BEATRRE
subsidiary - (6,600)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BEXKFBTERSE
ACTIVITIES 29,810 476,719
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReRBESZEORL)EM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEE (1,178,615) 1,027,500
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BRE&RBEESZEFINHE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,685,638 669,760
Effect of foreign currency rate changes JMNESEREF) 2 2 & (47,358) (11,622)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HeRRESEEFERYE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 459,665 1,685,638
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HREeRHRESZEESRINT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITHBR MRS 459,665 1,685,638




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

1.

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the subsidiaries of the Company
operate. For the convenience of the financial statements
users, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), as the
Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading
and investments. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in property investment, other investments, the
distressed assets business and production and trading
of petrochemical products. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and the Group’s
associates are set out in note 45.

Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined bengfit plans: Employee
contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 — 2012 cycle

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2011 — 2013 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SRR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BFE2015F 12 431 HIEF/E

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments?

Revenue from contracts with
customers’

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations'

Disclosure initiative'

Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer plants'

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception'

Equity method in separate financial
statements'

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012 — 2014 cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
“fair value through other comprehensive income”
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented
in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s financial assets as at 31 December 2015 and
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in the future
may result in provision of twelve months and lifetime
expected credit losses on financial assets and is not
likely to have other material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group based on an analysis of
the Group’s existing business model.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in
the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been
amended with reference to the new CO to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly, the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
based on the new requirements. Information previously
required to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or
Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules are not disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
properties and certain financial instruments that are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

TESEEGE)

BEFE BRI 622 %) B MR
HANFRE RESFEREREZRS
METEEREZ=2015F12 A318 1t
BN AR o bhoh - ETR ARG
FERBNEERATERTEBRTE
BIVERER] - WHEZE BB B 1% 5 %8l
1FARS{E - Bt - #®&ZE 2015412 A 31
HItMBFEEGREMBERENZINRE
BHES TERNBRTEE - #HE
2014412 B 31 B It BEFEE N L EE
BIERIBEIRE R e M REANZ7
REE -  RREMBERETEHBRISD
R ARGk LR R 2 AT E Sk R
BERENES R THEHI KBS LT
BN mERIFTENE R

BOERETERIARNREBREDR
NEREXAAEBGIER)GES - K
HAVBRREEELKARELER
W o TR TEGETBERAT ¢

JEE SE AN — AR DR SR B dn B AR 7% PR A
HREZAAEERE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date of
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

FREHBERE)

FEEMRRAWBARAEEED 22
(&)

fief AN £= B K 25 3 — I P /B8 2 B 2 42
- WaXNERDNEBEEAER I
()T E 2 AR EREMRE
R H) N A EARFNE (i) B AR E E
(BHEBHE) ZEmMREERE B REM
FEBRER MO EER - FRINEME
EHEER BB ARNEE S
K& AR E S B SRS
REBERAE 2T AARKBINE S
BRMBMEERIPTIEE,FFA - EH
THRERENERES —RHEE) -
RAREESEE BIRE R AT B AR
ZEMBRELAE  RIRBEEGE
A2 39 SR AR i 1R A BRES 1) 5 HE R
ZRREER) RRBERRHEE
EREN TR

EBE6

WERGERBUEEAR - ZHEHL
BERERQAEFE Mt EIA
RAKERBRECEERNRERZAR
B AEEHMEEERBEAELZ
BEMEERTRAEDNEEAE
BEwRBE ZEE e BREBIRZE
A—RRELRNIBERPER

REERE - PrUREE 2 AI iR & & K A
AEZBBNREEZAAEMER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

FREHBERE)
R E)

SURERAEME - BENROEERAH
HAMNHRMETZ s S ARES
EABN  —HASELEN -

EERRECHSELBUEFRA
BB AR RETREETRE
R - R ERARRAKBEBMELENE
B EOERENRSELEVRER
HERETHEIETRENR - B8RS
EXBUZzAOKERIREKREE
B REEEE LR ENEIRDEE
ZEBUNEE  TRMNBNENARE
EZREEAEERLL D EEIHIA
ZEMzEMEE CREE - PREE
ZEMBEBRETERENER R AR
# o DR ZHEREBBRNERIRE
AT AR -

REERBREELENUR  FELE
Was e B ARG RENDE -

BEAREAEEH R (TEEAYE
MER - EAYBEABSRRANR
2 BT RIS 2 I - B IR
5 B SR SRS R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate, or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate or joint venture is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
assets. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs of disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continueq)

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the property to derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land (classified as finance lease) and buildings held for
use in production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost or fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
includes the costs of testing whether the asset is
functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds
from selling any items produced while bringing the
asset to that location and condition (such as samples
produced when testing equipment).

Leasehold land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued amount,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses and
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end
of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
or fair value of property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress less residual value over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Other interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Commission income and consultancy income are
recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from the sale of petrochemical products is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles
have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group; and

° the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Property management fee income is recognised when
management service is rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
three categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees, points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in net gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial assets is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gain or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts
due from an associate, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and loan receivables) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Equity securities traded in an active market and debt
securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale debt securities relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables which are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from associates/subsidiaries, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When other receivables, trade receivables, amounts
due from associates/subsidiaries are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, trade
and bills payables, other payables and amounts due to
subsidiaries are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and investment in a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period, except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations and those denominated in
RMB are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in which case
the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”), and
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff in
Hong Kong are defined contribution retirement benefit
payments and are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimate is
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
of HK$2,443,340,000 (2014: HK$2,479,864,000),
representing properties for commercial use are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of these investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to these investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.

The remaining investment properties of the Group with
fair value of HK$205,628,000 (2014: HK$337,560,000),
representing the Group’s residential properties, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, these
properties were held under a business whose objective
is to recover through sale. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to these investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirety through sale.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdiction in various cities in the
PRC. Accordingly, significant judgment is required in
determining the amount of land appreciation and its
related income tax provision. The Group recognised
LAT under deferred taxation, and the provision of the
LAT was included under deferred taxation charged to
profit or loss when the management considered that
the investment properties are ready for realisation
through sale. The Group recognised the LAT based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the income
tax expenses and the related deferred taxation in
the periods in which such tax is finalised with the
local authorities when the investment properties were
disposed.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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4.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Recoverability of amount due from an associate

As the end of the reporting period, the Group has
HK$1,149,637,000 (2014: HK$900,572,000) amounts
due from an associate. The Group assesses the
recoverability of the amounts due from an associate
on individual basis, when there is objective evidence
of impairment loss on amounts due from an associate,
the Group estimates the future cash flows of amounts
due from an associate for impairment testing purpose.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the amount due from an associate’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluded credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise in future financial periods.

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties are stated at fair value of
HK$2,443,340,000 (2014: HK$2,479,864,000)
based on the valuation performed by independent
qualified professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on market value basis
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
comparable market transactions. In relying on the
valuation, management has exercised their judgment
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of fair value of loan receivable with
embedded derivative

The Group’s investments in loan receivable with
embedded derivative represented debt securities with
embedded conversion right to convert into equity shares
of underlying companies. The Group designated this
investment as financial assets at FVTPL. The fair value
of the loan receivable with embedded derivative was
determined by directors of the Company with reference
to the valuation report provided by an independent
professional valuer. Details of the assumptions used to
determine the fair value by the independent professional
valuer were set out in note 25.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belongs. Determining whether impairment
needs to be provided requires an estimation of future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating
units. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation for cash generating units are set out
in note 19.
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5. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes borrowings, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits.

Management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risk associated with the capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues and the issue of new debt or the
redemption of the existing debt.

Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

EXmEER

AEEBBEAKIEBHNEREE ARG
HREEEEAUREEE NI R R ESR
ARERE T A B AR EERIRME
HHEAL - NREBHEEREEATF
BHRH— -

AEEZENGEBHBEFERGEREE
E ReFRRkReFAERERRARK
AEBABIERA - P BREEHTK
A~ fEERRE BRI o

AEBEEEEUFEET A A RE
BEAGERBRYIRAKEBESKNAARES
By m e R o AR SR EASE B BT R AR
FEITHERXBRIREERS A
NFEBEBHNERER

EMITA

SBMITAE>ER

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
FTET TAT

Financial assets ERMEE
FVTPL RIBRREARERRE
— Held-for-trading — HEEE 112,998 —
— Designated as FVTPL — BEARBERRIZAAEEE 743,594 740,499
Loans and receivables B3R N A 2,415,713 3,694,196
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 310,179 352,258
Financial liabilities SRMEE
Amortised cost BIHAA 3,691,632 3,673,547
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
structured finance securities, available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investment, loan
receivable with embedded derivative, amounts due
from an associate, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trade and bills payables,
accrued charges, other payables and borrowings. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk from prior year.

Market risks

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 relates primarily to its fixed-
rate amounts due from associates, fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits, fixed-rate loan receivables, fixed-rate
other receivables, fixed-rate other payable and fixed-
rate borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk as at 31
December 2015 primarily relates to its bank balances
carried at prevailing deposit rate, variable-rate loan
receivable and floating-rate borrowings (2014: bank
balances carried at prevailing deposit rate, variable rate
loan receivable and floating-rate borrowings).
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
in order to mitigate its exposure associated with
fluctuations relating to interest cash flows. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated. In addition, the
Group has concentration risk on its floating-rate loan
receivables, bank balances and borrowings which
expose the Group significantly towards the change in
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates (“HIBOR”) and the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) interest rate.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to the floating-rate borrowings
and other payable to non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, variable-rate loan receivables and variable-
rate bank balances at the end of the reporting period
and the reasonable possible change taking place at the
beginning of each year and held constant throughout
the year. The directors of the Company remained using
150 (2014: 150) basis points for assessing interest rate
risk on the above balances (except for bank balances)
after considering the impact of the volatile financial
market conditions. The directors of the Company used
10 (2014: 10) basis points for assessing interest rate
risk on bank balances because they considered that the
fluctuations on the interest rate on bank balances would
be less significant. If interest rates had been 150 basis
points (2014: 150 basis points) higher/lower for the
above balances (except for bank balances) and 10 basis
points (2014: 10 basis points) higher/lower for bank
balances and all other variables were held constant, the
potential effect on post-tax loss (2014: post-tax profit)
for the year is as follows:

SRMIAE)

TREAREEBERBEKE)

TS (&)
T m b & FE ()

7R 5% 8 3 48 5 PR AR N SR 48 Y 5 e ) R
ReMEWmAKE AR - AW T
BN RERETERTARYRRE
R E 2 b5 B RS B IREEANE
MEETE - R ARERBREFR
BIFBFI RS2 B EK - RITHEH
LEE  ERBBRTRAERS(EFR
RITAERE D RAFBARRITTAR
RITDMERBEARNEEREAZE -

AR B8R D AT T E R Z By I R 5t
BRNEEREMBENRT —RHBAR]
Z IR - BZ e A R BRI
BERRIZZEA R B IBITEHRRA
REPHRNERARBFEPNEENE
BAge LI B RN B EFEREFT
BHBREATENS  c ARRESEEE
CRMBRERBEENFEMBETH
RER 150 (2014 4 : 150) E2h A 1ERT#X
LA E &R (SRITHERRBRIN M FI R R -
RATEZEELA10(20144F : 10) H BhiE
FZRITREBZ A RER - BAEEED
AR PRITERE R BERE o {75 F
T |l 58K (SRATAE 8RR O ) 3R 150
HB(20144 - 150 &)W EF T
& R A10K B(20144F - 10K B ) H +
Ft/ TEBRRIBITEHFITBRRE M — R
B HERNKRFEER2014 : BREi%
) BBIER 2T

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
TET TAET

Increase in post-tax loss (2014: decrease in
post-tax profit) for the year

FAKRBIRERIEM(2014 F :
BRI MR )

(26,909) (21,809)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. ERIEE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies tREREEEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) TSR (E)
Foreign currency risk management SN e B
The major financial assets and liabilities of the Group NEBARINEEBUAINERE AT EE
are denominated in currencies other than the functional UNAKBETESHEERSREAE -
currency of the respective group entities. Other than BRTAIBEIN KRR EERAAEE
the items stated below, the directors of the Company FrEERA NS ERR BRI T FE - AR
consider that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency EENETERXFENSBILEE QTN
exchange risk is insignificant as the majority of the MEEB AR ZEMN - HEBZBITE
Group’s transactions are denominated in the functional HE T ¢
currency of each individual group entity. The equivalent
amounts of HKD are set out below:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KBS
— HKD — BT 9,134 4,285
— United States dollars — X 3,002 2,994
12,136 7,279
Borrowings BE
— HKD — BT 680,000 590,000
Other payables H TR
— HKD — BT 34,417 29,161
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Basis of sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity analysis is prepared to demonstrate the
effect of foreign exchange differences by 10% change in
exchange rate of the functional currency (mainly RMB)
against the relevant foreign currencies of the Company
and respective subsidiaries, assuming all other variables
were held constant. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit where the functional
currencies weaken 10% against the relevant foreign
currencies of the Company and respective subsidiaries.
For a 10% strengthening of the functional currencies of
the Company and respective subsidiaries, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss/profit for
the year.

SRMIAE)

CREREEEERBE(E)

s mEeE (&)

SR B ()

BREDTEE

BEREMATSERERITE  BIES
MBRINEER 2B E10% NEE
BAARBAZ)ZERREARRR
BEAMB AR - AT ZIERENEIRE
i E AR AT B A RIAR LT IMNE 55 10%
R FBE 28 - EThaEE B AD
Bl EEM B A TR 10% - &5 BEA
FrEERFIREHERRRA RN
@,

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$'000
TET TET

Increase in post-tax loss (2014: decrease in
post-tax profit) for the year

FABRTRRERIEIM(2014F :
BRI MR )

(58,640)  (51,092)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management

Equity investments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group is exposed to price
risk through its available-for-sale equity investments
and held-for-trading investments (2014: available-for-
sale investments). For available-for-sale investments
measured at cost less impairment, as the fair value
could not be measured reliably, they have not been
included in the sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at end
of the reporting period. If the prices of the respective
available-for-sale investments in listed equity securities,
certain unlisted equities which measured at fair value,
held-for-trading investments had been 10% (2014: 10%)
higher/lower, assuming all other variables were held
constant, the impact to the Group would be:

SRMIAE)

CREREEEERBE(E)

s mEeE (&)

B R EE

BT E

R2015612H31H  REERET
HEERERERFIEEEIRE (2014
FAMHEERERE) BERERR
% o MUK AHBREGT 2N AIHEER
BISBEREREBRESN - AEAR
BT ST & ©

T ESBRRE DT R A RS R 2
EARERRBRMETE - MEHE LT’
RFH 2 JHHERE  ELMRAR
MatE RIFEBEERE 2 BIEE N
10% (20144 : 10%) * R E AT
BrEARERFTE  HAKENTE

REE

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$'000
TET TET

Held-for-trading investments: FIEEERE -
Decrease in post-tax loss for the year A FERBRTE EE 9,435 —
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE -
Decrease in other comprehensive expense WA HAM 2
(net of tax) (Br%i18) 3,418 7,865
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Equity investments (Continued)

10% (2014: 10%) change in equity investment price
represents the directors of the Company’s assessment
of the reasonable possible change in price.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group is exposed to
concentration risk on the available-for-sale investments
in listed equity securities and held-for-trading
investments (2014: available-for-sale investments)
as they comprise equity shares issued by several
companies listed Hong Kong.

Loan receivable with embedded derivative
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group was

exposed to price risk through its loan receivable with
embedded derivative.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Loan receivable with embedded derivative (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the listed equity
securities, which were used as key input in the valuation
of loan receivable with embedded derivative (particulars
are set out in note 25), had been 10% higher/lower,
assuming all other variables were held constant, the
impact to the Group would be:

SRMIAE)

CREREEEERBE(E)

s mEeE (&)

Bt5EE EE (&)

MERAXITETEZ REER(E)

TR GRED MR R REHRZE
RERMETE - MEBIEMBRARIT
AETAZEREERGEEGHERNMHE
25) T E@ARIBZ EMBRAEFESER
LT TE10% - BRRPAEE A #E
RERTE  HAKENFE/ER

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
TET TAT

Decrease in post-tax loss (2014: increase in ~ FRRM BT B EE

post-tax profit) for the year (2014 4F : $ZINBRFR &&= F)) 6,412 8,164
Increase in post-tax loss (2014: decrease in ~ F AL INERF 12 EE

post-tax profit) for the year (2014 5 : WABRE &R EF)) (1,467) (8,320)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis above is unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing model used in the fair
value valuation of the loan receivable with embedded
derivative involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group were
also exposed to interest rate risk through its loan
receivable with embedded derivative.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Loan receivable with embedded derivative (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined
based on the exposure to interest rate risk at end of
the reporting period. If the interest rate, which was also
used as key input in the valuation of loan receivable
with embedded derivative (particulars are set out in note
25), had been 150 basis points higher/lower, assuming
all other variables were held constant, the impact to the
Group would be:

SRMIAE)

CREREEEERBE(E)

s mEeE (&)

Bt5EE EE (&)

MERAXITETEZ REER(E)

TR GURE DT TR R RS HIR 2 F
K\ M EEE o fisd B R H IR VKT A B
ARTETAZ BREERGEGER
RKTEE25) W EBBARIE 7T
150 EH - RBRAAEMAIERRER
N HHAKENTZERER

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
TET TAT

Increase in post-tax loss (2014: decrease in ~ F AL HNEEFI 12 EE

post-tax profit) for the year (2014 %F : WA BRTIE 5 F) (9,310) (16,508)
Decrease in post-tax loss (2014: increase in ~ FRRDBRFI1ZEE

post-tax profit) for the year (2014 £ : $EINBREL & F)) 10,616 8,328

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis above is unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing model used in the fair
value valuation of the loan receivable with embedded
derivative involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The

SRMIAE)

CREREEEERBE(E)

B EZmE

BEDRBALAR  AREERLE
HERERBZ—EAFHRLRAS
SEEBAHREEZBIERERRS
TRBERZ YR  EFEREROE
SR 4RI 1 <7 BB -

REE LI

TSI 2R R 5 AN SR AR DA TE B SRR
MZITET RS RE B BN FIREH
AR - ZIEKEEREBRABEZ TR
REREERAEE AR ZRNRFE
HKERE - NRBEFERAESHRE
m e BENBRAFBHE - AHHREN

table includes both interest and principal cash flows. IRITH RN ANIREHA R E o
To the extent that interest flows are floating-rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest

rate at the end of the reporting period.

Total

On demand contractual

or less than undiscounted
6 months 6 months cash flow Carrying
REXS to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years A8z value

HR6ER  6HAZ1E 1328 2258 BSRAE FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT

As at 31 December 2015 R2015%124 318
Trade and bills payables ERRFRRE 273,792 - - - 273,792 273,792
Other payables HAbJERIF 811,953 - - - 811,953 811,953
Borrowings &8 719,183 764,834 747,746 582,167 2,813,930 2,605,887

1,804,928 764,834 747,746 562,167 3,899,675 3,691,632
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EZ20154F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE
6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. ERIEE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies tREREEEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELERE(E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) BB L& (&)
Total
On demand contractual
or less than undiscounted
6 months 6 months cash flow Carrying
REXH to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years it value
SR6EE  6EAZIE 122F 2855 REHAE FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FET AT AT AT
As at 31 December 2014 R2014512 318
Trade payables &R 114,257 = = = 114,257 114,257
Other payables RN 986,385 = = = 986,85 986,85
Borrowings EE 858,928 370,085 686,790 1,047,830 2,963,633 2,512,405
1,960,070 370,085 686,790 1,047,830 4,064,775 3,673,547

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 6 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2015, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
loans of the Group amounted to HK$257,274,000
(2014: HK$236,905,000) respectively. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that such bank loans of the Group will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements in note 35. The aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows of the Group will
amount to HK$258,070,000 (2014: HK$238,507,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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BEREREREX ZRITE R
A LB EREAR D AT 2[R B k=
RefE A | & A R2015412 4
JIHZEASERTERCEERE
48 % 5 257,274,0007% JT(20144F :
236,905,000/ 7L ) - &8EEARNEE 2
BN - AR B EBY T HEEHRITA
BEETFEEMBREIRAEER - AA
RIEERE  ZEAERRTEFEE
ZRMFEIS 2N 2 ERIBHRME 2 TE
EENAHEER - @R XEEZ2EXE
N F) B 4838 & 7 i A& 258,070,000 7 7T
(2014 : 238,507,000/ 7T) °
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of amounts due from one (2014: one) associate
of HK$1,149,637,000 (2014: HK$900,572,000),
loan receivables from one (2014: four) independent
third parties of total HK$270,012,000 (2014:
HK$798,479,000), loan receivable with embedded
derivative from one (2014: one) independent third
party of HK$736,866,000 (2014: HK$733,844,000),
loan interest receivables from two (2014: two)
independent third parties of total HK$47,864,000 (2014:
HK$8,984,000) and amount due from one (2014: one)
third party of HK$152,932,000 (2014: HK$57,039,000).
In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt
throughout the year to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts at the end of
the reporting period. In this regard, the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds deposited with a few major banks. However,
the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

SRMIAE)

CREREEARRBEK(E)

=EEE

RARERR - R SHEFREBITH
EAMEYAEEDEANZELRE
EFZHHZEAEEER  AZEA
EDRREAMBRARINEZEER
B pHMERRmNE  ~A5EEEEX
MiEERESTER - BER—R(2014
F o —R)EZAFIF1,149,637,000 78
JC(2014 4 : 900,572,000 JT ) * M
FE—R(2014F : WZ)BILE=F
B 48 $270,012,00078 7T(2014 4 -
798,479,000/ 7T ) » FA—4 (2014 4F -
—Z)BUBE=FAERARTETLR
2 JE U & 7K & 736,866,000 7T (2014
F : 733,844,000 L ) E KW &
(20144 : MR )BILE=FHHNERF
B 4 8 547,864,000 T(20144F :
8,984,000/ 7T ) R FEIN — % (2014 F -
— 2 ) BLE =77 7 152,932,000 7 T
(20144 : 57,039,000 7T ) » AEE
BIEEERE  AEBRIZSBEILANE
W AR TE A 2N 3 45 HA SR MY 1] [ Uk <5 B8 DA 1
REFETAI B U £ 5812 B R SRR EE
Bttt AEBRE  AEEZEE
B E K@ o

AEERNESFRRERERRITMF
EEERBAEET - AMRBHESZ
FERRERER  A/RZHFHR
BARIEBNRT -

TRITRZAAENE

FEBRALAEHEERZHMERZ
RABEDEEEMEELR L ETE

AEERNEREELRSRABEBENEE
HBERRRAAAEFE - TREHRD
MEETZEFeHEENERABBENAR
ENEEEEHERABNITARE
=)
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets/ Fair value
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy
LREE /SRAE DARER AREER

2015 2014
LCX  HK$'000
- FAT

SRMIAE)

EMIAZAARENEE)

FEBRALAEHEEREZHERZ

RABEBDEEEMEELUALETE
(&)

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

fEERERERER

1) Held-for-trading investment 112,998 — Level 1
BIEEERE £1%8

2) Listed available-for-sale financial - 24,613 Level 1
assets 18

LA EEREE

3) Unlisted available-for-sale financial 34,177 54,037 Level 1
asset (Note) E18
FrmuRHESRMEEH)

4) Structured finance securities 6,728 6,655 Level 3
KBNS RES Z3%

5) Loan receivable with embedded 736,866 733,844 Level 3
derivative Y

MERANITE LA BIKE

Note: Restricted shares of a company with its other shares
listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 in the
period.
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Quoted bid prices in an active market
WERTS BEARE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

NERMEZEARE

By reference to the quoted bid prices in an active
market of the respective listed securities.

2HRBLHROHNERT S EARE -

Valuation provided by counterparty financial
institution. Major assumptions are stated in
note 22.

BRI FERBBRA 2 ME - FERRT
22 o

Loan — discounted cash flow method was used
to capture the present value of the expected
future economic benefits that will flow to the
Group, based on an appropriate discount rate;

BN RARERTRERGRARTELSE L
LEWNEOIRE  NABIIRAEGE

Embedded derivative — binominal model. Details
of key inputs are set out in note 25.

BARNITETLR — 8% - HRAZZS
P25

Hret - R BB RS B E A AR N EE
BaRXSMmET -

HA - F1RERFE2RZMELEER -

—T-HEFH
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flows
analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The executive directors of the Company are responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data or information provided by counterparty
financial institutions to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available or counterparty financial
institutions cannot provide sufficient information in
relation to fair value, the management of the Group
will engage third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The finance manager reports to management
of the Group semi-annually to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

(Continued)

31 December 2015

SRMIAE)

EMIAZAARENEE)

RAETEBRIGERSF (&)

31 December 2014

R2015E12 8 31R R2014E12 318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18 $28 £38 4% 18 %28 %38 4%
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKE'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ REZREAAEREMN
SHEE
Structured finance securities RS EIES = = 6,728 6,728 = = 6,655 6,655
Loan receivable with WERAASTETA
embedded derivative LEUER - - 736866 736,866 - - 73384 733844
Non-derivative financial assets ~ H{EE B4 2314
held-for-trading SREE 112,998 - - 112,998 - - - -
Available-for-sale financial ~ W HESHEE
assets
Listed equity securities tikaEs - - - - 24,613 - = 24,613
Unlisted equity securities EFTRAES 3177 - - 3177 54,087 - - 54,037
Total % 147,175 — T304 80769 7850 - TH0499 819149
Annual Report 2015 — T RFFR
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B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

of financial assets and financial liabilities

SRMIAE)

EIFEREERSRMEBBZARET
C ek

Loan
receivable
with
embedded Structured
derivative finance
MAE#B® AN securities
TETARZ EEM Total
FEW & K SRIES L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T#&T T TETT

At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 A1H 720,820 6,152 726,972
Total gains or losses: Wzs sk R 1EEE

— Change in fair value (Note) — RRERE(HiE) 51,824 503 52,327
Coupon interest E PSS (38,800) — (38,800)
At 31 December 2014 R20144%12 831 H 733,844 6,655 740,499
Total gains or losses: Wzs sk R 1BEE

— Change in fair value (Note) — RRERE (K1) 41,822 73 41,895
Coupon interest SEAME (38,800) — (38,800)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F 12 A 31 H 736,866 6,728 743,594

Note: Changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The total gain for the year
included in profit or loss of HK$41,895,000 (2014:
HK$52,327,000) relates to the loan receivable with
embedded derivative and structured finance securities
held at the end of the reporting period.
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EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
7. Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue from major products, investments and services
is analysed as follows:

WA R EBER

BEZER  RERBRBHWADTLA
™

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
FTET TAT

Property management fee income LEX=RE =N PN 220,376 203,107
Rental income e WA 86,107 81,575
Dividend income from listed and unlisted LRI ETBEHREIA

securities 2,796 16,495
Sales of petrochemical products AltETIERHES 30,759 123,050

340,038 424,227

The Group is currently organised into six operating
divisions: distressed asset business, investments
(including the results from held-for-trading investments,
available-for-sale investments, structured finance
securities, loan receivable with embedded derivative
and loan receivables), sales of properties, property
leasing, property management and production and
trading of petrochemical products. These operating
divisions are the basis of the internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, in order to allocate resources
to segments and to assess their performance. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly review
segment assets and liabilities.
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment:

7. WARZHERE)
n L ONSES

AT EAREWARREREE RRE
DEBZ AT

Year ended 31 December 2015

BZ20155 12831 ALLEE

Production

and trading of

Distressed petrochemical

assets products

business Sales of Property Property a1
FREE  Investments  properties leasing  management EREE Consolidated
£ & nEHE NERE NEER R&E &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FE7 FA7 FE7 FA7 FA7 FA7 FA7
Revenue WA - 2,796 - 86,107 220,376 30,759 340,038
Segment (loss) profi A (ER) &R @ 34,499 (39) 68,737 (19,130) (150,190) (66,127)

Other unallocated income, ~ EAIADFMA »

gains and losses WHREE 73,373
Corporate expenses RAER (66,328)
Finance costs HEBE (47,990)
Share of results of associates BB EAFEE (12,384)
Loss before taxation BiRAEE (119,956)

146 Silver Grant International Industries Limited

REBREXARAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

7.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

7. WARZDHERE)

DERBARER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2014

MBHRME

HE014512 31 ALLEE

Production

and trading of

Distressed petrochemical

assets products

business Sales of Property Property Rl T
PREE  Investments properties leasing ~ management EREE  Consolidated
£ k& MEHE VIESEE NEER RiHE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Revenue WA - 16,495 - 81,675 203,107 123,050 424,201
Segment (loss) proft (B8R & U] 177,462 (39 (17,527) (24,647) (28,080) 107,162

Other unallocated income, ~ EfERAFUA -

gains and losses hizRhEE 117,39
Corporate expenses NAER (84,888)
Finance costs HHER (36,543)
Share of results of associates #(REBENEELE (05,580
Profit before taxation BB AT&R 47,541
The accounting policies of the operating segments are RHEES

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3.

Segment (loss) profit represents the results of each
segment without allocation of items which are not
actively reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
including other unallocated income, gains and losses,
comprising interest income other than those from loan
receivables, net foreign exchange loss, net loss on
disposal of corporate property, plant and equipment
and certain miscellaneous unallocated income. The
unallocated corporate expenses, finance costs and
share of results of associates are not allocated
into individual segment as they are under central
management. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7. WARDEHER(E)
Other segment information Hit o BER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BZ015512 831 BLLEE
Production
and trading of
petrochemical
Distressed products

assets Sales of Property Property i) 1(A
business Investments properties leasing  management ERLE Unallocated  Consolidated
TREEXH R S NEEK HEEE R#E AFOR &4
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
iz %3 FEn iz FEn Tz TEn 5 TEn

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
BERERAPRNGEEA A FEEL 88 :

Depreciation bk - - - (785) (1,845) (28,298) 8,886) (39,814)
Release of land use rights TiHERERS - - - = = (4,487) = (4,487)
Change in fair value of structured finance B MEBESZ

securities DrEEH - 73 - - - - - 3
Change in fair value of loan receivable with ~ HBBRARSTAT A 2 EE

embedded derivative HZDREED - 4,822 - - - - - 41,822
Interest income from loan receivables ERETZHBRA - 41,300 = = = = = 41,300
Change in fair value of held-for-trading FIEEEREAAEEY

investments - (41,956) - - - - - (41,956)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHLERERR

investments - 758 - - - - - 58
Change in fair value of investment properties XA ME A4 % - - - 36,875 - - 18 36,893
Impaiment loss recognised on avallable-for- ~ ATEHERARR 2 HEEE

sale investments - (4,323) - - - - - (4,323)
Net loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HENE  BERREELZ

equipment B - - - (156) (109) - (301) (566)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker:
ERRELTESEARANSE

Capital addtions BARE

— property, plant and equipment — 0% BERRE - - - 8 4,236 761,765 - 766,079
Interest in associates BERTER - - 60,674 - - 682,852 - 743,526
Share of results of associates BEBENTEE - - (18,266) - - 5,882 - (12,384)
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ

7.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

7. WARZDHERE)

Hiten BER ()

Year ended 31 December 2014

HENMUE12 A3 BIEER
Production
and trading of
petrochemical
Distressed products
assets Sales of Property Property Rt T
business Investments properties leasing management EREE Unallocated Consolidated
FREEEH K& NEHE ELELY NEER RisE ESI &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT 7./ AT AT AT AT
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assefs:
BERERAPRNGBEIATEE 68 :
Depreciation i 4 - - - (795) (1,384) (29,119) (11,049) (82,341)
Release of land use rights TR - - - - - (4,550) - 4,550)
Change in fair value of structured finance BN EBES
securities DAEZY - 503 - - - - = 503
Change in fair value of oan receivable with — MABRASTET A EUE
embedded derivative EPAN L) - 51824 = = = = = 51,824
Interest income from loan receivables FEWEFZ HEHRA = 62,709 = = = = = 62,709
Change in fair value of held-for-trading RENAEE
investments - 8,535 - - - - - 8,535
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERENS
investments - 36,617 - - - - - 36,617
Change in fair value of investment properties  REMEAAL EE - = = (80,378) = = 520 29,858)
Impaiment loss recognised on avallable-for- AT HERABER 2
sale investments REEE - (53,285) - - - - - (53,285
Impaiment loss on other receivable EfEWG 2 REER = (86,044) = = = = — (86,044)
Impairment loss on interest receivable EUASHZABER = (10,393) = = = = = (10,399)
Net loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEHE « iE &R
equipment Ef7ERTE - - - (160) (98) - - (258)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker:
EHRMETZEERRENSE:
Capttal addtions EXRE
— property, plant and equipment — 0% BERS - - - 2,093 3,889 1,225,845 4 1,231,831
Inferest in associates BENRER - - 82,886 = = 479,489 = 562,375
Share of results of assoclates REBENREE - = 26,257) = = 68,081 (97,409) (55,585)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ
7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group
are as follows:

WA R EBER (&)
—BEREFNEHR

REHHFER—BEFHRAEER
BAEEREEZ10%WT ¢

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$’000
Fiaz RS

Customer A' BEER'

Revenue from production and trading of petrochemical
products.

Except for disclosed as above, there is no other
customers contributing over 10% of total revenue of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external
customers is based on the location of the Group’s
operations to derive the revenue and information about
its non-current assets by geographical location of the
assets are detailed below:

N/A 45,856
T A

k BHIE TEREEMHERA -

BrLA_EPTHBESN - Bl E 20154 & 2014
F12A31BIEFETREEMER T
BB IBEW A Z 10% °

AEBEZEBMHRTEAREES - AKE
BEIMEBEET CBARERAEEZ
LB ARSI A R ZIER B B E A
DB EREIN T

Revenue Non-current assets

L ON FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T#ET FET TETT

Hong Kong a5 3,731 16,040 283,499 278,833
PRC M 336,307 408,187 7,105,812 6,494,405

340,038 424,227 7,389,311 6,773,238

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments. BieE : ERBEETEESRTIA -
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B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
8. Other Income, Gains and Losses 8. HtWA - KWEREE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income FLEWA
— bank deposits — RITER 13,234 8,961
— amounts due from an associate — FERW—KEEE N B 55,763 85,858
— |oan receivables — RIWER 41,300 62,709
— others — Hftb 13,732 9,582
Consultancy income FER B UL A - 543
Commission income WA 3,290 3,093
Net foreign exchange loss JE L EIRF ER (8,878) (272)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWE  BEIEZEZ
equipment B8 %5 (566) (258)
Government grant (Note) BT Bh(ATaE) 1,225 58,628
Others H A, (177) 12,723
118,923 241,567

Hiit -A2015F 12 A1 HIEFERN - &5
F B AU A B RIS R 4R T A FE S
EHEE UWERANEEREFEAN
EHMERTHEER °

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2015, amount
mainly represents for non-recurring reward received from
PRC tax bureau to recognise the Group’s significant
contribution of tax in prior years.

R2014F 12 A31BIEFEARN - €5
AUBRENEITIXEREEEES®
(B—FEBAEE) EKELET R
MiE AR RIMNEE I TERAR ([
MBS L T ) B BT 4 B VE B i 8 2
MEBETHETERRER -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, amount
represents unconditional government grant provided
by the Management Committee of Taizhou Binjiang
Industrial Area, a PRC government authority, to
a subsidiary of the Group, Taizhou United East
Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ United East”), to
compensate certain expenses and losses incurred by TZ
United East.
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EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ

9. Finance Costs 9. HIKEH
2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within 7B A RNZESE BN RITER

five years lisA 121,416 116,892
Interest on other loans wholly repayable within 7R R ERNBHEEN HEE
five years AR 37,755 36,017
Total Fk) 159,171 152,909
Less: Amounts capitalised in the cost of B BAEBEBEREE
qualifying assets BN (111,181)  (116,366)
47,990 36,543
Borrowing costs capitalised during the both years are RRAERNEREZEEKRRN BEEE
specifically related to expenditure on qualifying assets. BEEZETHSEM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BFE2015F 12 A31 HiIFFZ

10. Directors’
Remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

and Chief Executive’s

directors and the chief executive were as follows:

10.

ESRTRARME

ENHANTREERITRARNME
wmr

2015
CEIE]
and other MPF

benefits  contribution Performance
Fees HER wEe bonus Total
Name of directors EEng ik Hitr @l (33 R"RERL kel
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET

(Note d)

(Witd)
Chen Xiaozhou BRZE 500 - - - 500
Hui Xiao Bing BNE 500 - - - 500
Gao Jian Min (Note a) BER(fHa) 500 4,530 18 700 5,748
Liu Tianni 2IRR 400 - - - 400
Gu Jianguo BEH 400 - - - 400
Chen Qiming BRI 500 - - - 500
Liang Qing (Note c) RE (ffitc) 400 - - - 400
Zhang Lu i 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming MR 300 - - - 300
Total ksl 3,900 4,530 18 700 9,148
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F 12431 HIFFE
10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERTHARMS (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
2014
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution  Performance
Fees &k wiEd bonus Total
Name of directors ESiA ik HiniaF 3R RETEA FakS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note d)
(Hiita)
Chen Xiaozhou BEAE 500 = = = 500
Hui Xiao Bing BNE 500 = = = 500
Gao Jian Min (Note a) =ER(Hza) 500 3,715 17 1,000 5,232
(Note b)
(Hztb)
Liu Tianni EPN 400 = = = 400
Gu Jianguo EEH 400 = = = 400
Chen Qiming PR 500 = = = 500
Liang Qing (Note c) 2E(Hizc) 400 = = = 400
Zhang Lu G 400 = = = 400
Hung Muk Ming HREA 300 = = = 300
Total @z 3,900 3,715 17 1,000 8,632

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments in

both years.

Notes:

Mr. Gao Jian Min is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

The amount includes the estimated value of quarters
provided amounting to approximately HK$Nil (2014:
HK$1,115,000).

Mr. Liang Qing was appointed as a director of the
Company on 28 February 2014.

The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

11. Employees’ Remuneration 11. ETIZE £
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included REBERB TS FHATEE—(2014
one (2014: one) director and the chief executive, details F: - )RBRESRITHBAEH  BEX
of whose emolument are set out in note 10 above. B S 15 E 5 7 XX HiFE10 - E R
The emoluments of the remaining four (2014: four) (20144 : ) B ALEHIENE AT

individuals are as follows:

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits Fre MEAMmEF 16,499 6,757
Performance related incentive payments BRBFER 2 B 2,100 7,625
Retirement benefit costs RGBT A 54 67
18,653 14,449

Their emoluments are within the following bands: BENMENFTIER :

Number of employees

EEAH
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 87L& 3,000,000 77T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & T £ 3,500,000 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,001 87T E 6,000,000 & 7T 1 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 & 7L £ 8,000,000 /5 7T 1 —
4 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ20154F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
12. Taxation 12. #1E
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Tax charge (credit) comprises: BIEZH(WA)BHE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — current tax R {2 FT1SFE — BNHER 1,838 16,866
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — (over) FEMEMSE — BIFEE
underprovision in prior year (EBE)RETE (1,196) 1,309
642 18,175
Deferred taxation (Note 36): RIERIE : (17 36)
— current year — KFE 9,219 (97,115)
Tax charge (credit) attributable to the AR R EKT B AR EMNL
Company and its subsidiaries FRIEZ [ (WA 9,861 (78,940)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong incurred
tax losses.

The taxation charge of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the year has been made based on the Group’s
estimated assessable profits calculated in accordance
with the relevant income tax laws applicable to the
subsidiaries in the PRC.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

12. Taxation (Continued) 12. BIE(Z)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) FRHBEAEGEERR PR A(E
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of B RAEERMT ¢

profit or loss as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

(Loss) profit before taxation BRAL AT (E518 ) 5 A (119,956) 47,541

Taxation at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax BB RSN E25% 2

rate of 25% HiIg (29,989) 11,885
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax  FAHL 75 A i TS0 F 2 BB 75
purpose T 16,742 90,163
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BT i EARTUWA R T
purpose oE (42,799) (116,626)
Tax effect of share of results of associates B(hHE AR EENTBTE 3,096 13,896
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIBE BN IE & 54,788 17,548
Tax effect of PRC LAT (Note) PELTERORBETE
(K1) - (89,521)
Tax effect of change in investment properties REMEBELEFNRIETE
for value 9,219 (7,594)
(Over) underprovision in prior year LARTEE GERRE ) IR BT 2 (1,196) 1,309
Income tax expenses (credit) for the year FRAMER B (BA) 9,861 (78,940)
Note: The Group recognised the LAT on the investment Hlit AREBRBEEEURENGHE
properties which are ready for realisation through TAZR 3R &5 HA R 7] ,\,\tlj’iZ&QW%
sale at the end of the reporting period based on the 2 THEER o RNEE2014F12 A
management’s best estimate. During the year ended SIBZEERN AEEBHESE T&
31 December 2014, the Group disposed of certain & ) 2 B o B BT R AR R R
investment properties and finalised the LAT calculation ZHE ZREYFEN LI ER A
of the disposed investment properties with PRC local & o $%389,521,0008 7T JIARI &
authorities. HK$89,521,000 represented the difference ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé’]iiﬁi‘@miﬁiéﬂé’%iﬁﬁ'ﬂi
between the LAT recognised in prior years and the actual MIBER 2 =58 o

LAT payment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
EZE2015F 12 531 HIFFZ

12.

Taxation (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the tax effect relating to

other comprehensive income:

12. BIE(E)

UATERBEME
#r

2015 2014
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax [flo]c:RENe Tax Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
BEASE  BEXE  REgeE Rk RExH  Kiikes
HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FE7r FE7 FE7 FET AT AT
Exchange difference arisingon ~~ HEEAZER
translation =8 (397,163) - (397,163) (59,337) - (59,337)
Fair value loss on available-for- ~ AILHERE 2 A%
sale investments BEEE (19,102) - (19,102) (7,326) - (7,326)
Reclassification of revaluation — RHEFEHERER
reserve upon disposal of B ZE A
avallable-for-sale investments (758) - (758) - - -
Impairment loss on available-for-  £REEIEH 2
sale investments recycled to EEERERE
profit for the year B 4,323 - 4,323 15,536 - 15,536
Reclassification adjustment B R
— transfer to profit or loss — HEGHEE
on disposal of foreign FEEE
operations BRk - - - (804) = (804)
Gain arising on revaluation of ERHENEEEL
leasehold properties Ws 12,659 (1,020) 11,639 19,733 (1,687) 18,046
Share of other comprehensive  EEBL AT
expense of associates E2Esh (10,535) - (10,535) (1,415) - (1,415)
(410,576) (1,02)  (@11,59) (33613 (1687) (35300
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE2015F 12 531 AIFEE
13. (Loss) Profit for the Year 13. FR(EHE) =R

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

FRER)ENESHEGEA)

2015 2014
LLECY Ol HK$'000
FTET TAT

Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B & 2,800 2,800
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 717 &k A5t A £ 52,818 117,523
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment % - ME k&R E2ITE 39,814 42,341
Release of land use rights = Hb {5 PR AR 5 4,487 4,550
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and i MiEF 2 &@EANHE S

buildings 598 467
Staff costs including directors’ and chief BTEABRERHINNHEI10Z

executive’s remuneration set out in note 10 EE RITHRAH & 191,114 192,036
Rental income under operating leases for KEMFETEERN S

investment properties, less outgoings of WA - BRI 5,572,000 37T

HK$5,572,000 (2014: HK$3,255,000) (2014 £ : 3,255,000/87T) (80,535) (78,320)

Other expenses

Starting from the second half of the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group’s subsidiary TZ United East
voluntarily suspended production due to shortage of
raw materials. Direct costs, such as wages, depreciation
expenses, consumables and other direct attributable
costs incurred by TZ United East during this suspension
period were recognised to profit or loss as other
expenses for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ20154F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

14. (Loss) Earnings Per Share 14. BR(HE)ER
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share RAEEB ARBENERERN BB
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the FIToARIE N5 BURET E i

following data:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET

(Loss) earnings: (E51R) B A :
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic (loss) FAMNAFTEFIEAN(EE) BT 2
earnings per share ((loss) profit for the year (B8 BF (RNRARIHEA AEG
attributable to owners of the Company) FRNEE) =) (65,777) 109,367

2015 2014
In In
thousand thousand

Fig Fhz
Number of shares: RGEE :
Weighted average number of shares for the AU ESRERN(ER)EBFZ
purpose of basic (Ioss) earnings per share InEFEHRHEE 2,304,850 2,304,850
The Company has no potential ordinary shares for the REZE2015F K 201412 A31 8 It
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. FE o ARa)WEEE L BRARGD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ20154F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE
15. Dividend 15. KRB
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Dividend recognised as distribution during the FRER DKM S
year:
Final dividend of 2014, paid HK$0.05 (2014: 214z 2014 R EAK B & 0.05
final dividend of 2013, paid HK$0.05) per BIL(2014%F : B 220134
share RHEARR B &h%0.05%7T) 115,242 115,242

No final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015
was recommended by the Board (2014: final dividend
of HK$0.05 per share and amounting to approximately
HK$115,242,000).

EEEITEZRMNEBE2015F12 A
1A IEFERARKRE(R014F E R
B B 5 80.058 T © K B A& K
115,242,000/ 7T ) °

16. Investment Properties 16. REYE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning of the year REL) 2,479,864 2,805,540
Exchange adjustments JE AR (142,417) (24,674)
Reclassified as assets classified as held-for- &3 AFIEE{ENE 2 EE
sale - (271,144)
Reclassified from property, plant and W - WE REEE AN Z)
equipment (Note) 69,000 —
Net increase (decrease) in fair value recognised MBS R FER 2 A 7 E1E 1
in profit or loss Om) 588 36,893 (29,858)
At the end of the year RER 2,443,340 2,479,864
Unrealised gain on property revaluation BENERRMFESEHZ
included in profit or loss IR Y 2 36,893 67,188
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
16. Investment Properties (Continued) 16. BEYEE)

At 31 December 2015, the legal title of the Group’s R2015F 12 A31H  NEB MUK

investment properties with carrying value of B8R M {8 %) 523,901,000 j£(2014

approximately HK$23,901,000 (2014: HK$24,883,000) 1 24,883,000 7)) (IR E M2 %
situated in the PRC has not been passed to the Group. BDHARBEERER -

Note: A residential property, which was used as staff quarter Bt AEBRURIFEREEIBE 2F
in prior years, of the Group has rented out for rental EYENR2015F12A31HE £
income during year ended 31 December 2015. Hence EHSWA - Bt EEWEHD
the residential property was reclassified from property, ¥ BEEAREEINEREDE-
plant and equipment to investment property. As at RESNER BEMEZAAER
date of reclassification, the fair value of the investment 69,000,000 7T °

property was HK$69,000,000.

The carrying value of the investment properties BBy S EmEaE
comprises:

2015 2014
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAET

Held under long-term NEERF A, Hb 5 i
lease/land use right: FREFE -
— situated in the PRC — IR 31,637 32,928
— situated in Hong Kong — [REB 70,000 —
101,637 32,928
Held under medium-term VAFR BRFA4Y,/ 4 4b 5 R 4
lease/land use right: ARFE
— situated in the PRC — IR 2,341,703 2,446,936
2,443,340 2,479,864
All the investment properties are held for rental income FIEIBEYEY AL EBRNFTE EWAE
under operating leases. ik o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

16.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
at 31 December 2015 and 2014 have been arrived at
on the basis of valuations carried out on the respective
dates by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”)
and A-Plus Surveyors Limited (“A-Plus”), both are
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. Vigers and A-Plus are members of the

Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value was determined by reference to
comparable sales transactions available in the relevant
market or by investment approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed and discounted at the market yield expected
by investors for these types of properties. The market
rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions
of similar commercial properties in Hong Kong and
adjusted to take into account the market expectation
from property investors to reflect factors specific to the
Group’s investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties measured at fair value
subsequently to initial recognition, are grouped to Level
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value are observable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

Annual Report 2015

16.

MBHRME

REWME#E)

AREHEREERF

REBRIREMER 2015F R 2014 F
12A31 B2 ARBENERBEHTEE
HEERARA T (AR ] REEA
ERTARAR(NERE]) @ MEREARE
B EAENE A BB ER
ZAMEBEETIHAE - BT RE
ERMEMSBEKE -

ARELLERBEMS 2 T HLERY
HWERXRFAREFARET AT HA
MEBN 2 HIEHEE RERAREER L
BEYMEMBHATSERETIRET -
misHeTHELEED TR LAYES
iz & R EA AT AR 2 HABWE -
BREFERBZDITRNE A 2B
EMEZHER IR ARMEREEY
MISHHAERMREAEBRENMEZ
FERIEZE o

RERNEZ DABME  WR2PA
MR BEREERS -
BREREZREMENR R HEE
ﬁ’ﬁ@%ﬂﬁgﬂﬁ@Z%uZE
ERHERZEEMIREHFEARE

£ -

RMEFEALRBE3 BOEHREA

—T-HEFH

163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

16.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the management of
the Group works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuer to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs of the
valuation. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the management of the Group.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair value for investment
properties and the key unobservable inputs used in the
valuation models.

16. REWE(#E)

DREFERMEERF(E)

RBERR > AKEZEEBEB LA
BREXGEMBEESERELMNETE
EEFERMEFEEE - FEEZA
REEEREY  HEFKEAKEMR
REBCEEEZ®W o

BREEATIRBRZIEETABRR
EZEH(F3H)

TRETANKREMERIAEEZF
i M AR FHER A P EE AT E

BZER-

Relationship
of unobservable
Valuation Range of inputs to fair value
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs FORBEZERR
&R M2A BZARE B FARBEZER FIHBEREEEEE MMEZBE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEn AT
Office 24373 25,222 Investment approach (i)  Capitalisation rate 4% — 6% 4% — 6% Slightly higher the
HAZ RER A BR(EH = capitalisation rate,
slightly lower the fair
value
BALRIRNS AR
BHfE
(i) Market rent RMB68 — RMB78 RMB58 — RMB64 Slightly higher the market
ke per square per square rent, slightly higher the
meter per meter per month  fair value
month BAGTHRAR mRMelE AR
BAGYHRAR  Bs8T— e
%687 — AR®64T
ARHT8 T
Carpark 163,680 172,370 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB5,053 —  RMB5,053 — Slightly higher the
FE5 iA193)7s price RMB7,446 per  RMBG,117 per  adjusted price slightly
TRERSHE square meter  square meter higher the fair value
BYGKARYE BTARARE GHEENS  AAE
5,053 77 — 5,053 — e
AE®74467 ARE6117T

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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16.

Investment Properties (Continued)

16. REWMZE (&)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using

DREFEBRMEERF(E)

BREEAT I RBRZERTEBAR

significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued) BZER(FE3H)(E)
Relationship
of unobservable
Valuation Range of inputs to fair value
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs FORBEZEER
1H RM2A3IAZARE B FARBEZER FIRBEZEREE MMEZBE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEn AT
Commercial A 1,015,532 1,089,290  Investment approach () ~ Capitalisation rate 4% — 6% 4% — 6% Slightly higher the
HEN RERA BARLA% capitalisation rate,
slightly lower the fair
value
BANERS  DrE
BifE
(i) Market rent RMB70 — RMB67 — Slightly higher the market
7 RMB135per  RMB132 per rent, slightly higher the
square meter  square meter fair value
per month permonth  THEMEMS  ARE
§AGYHR  BABTAR &
ARMT0T —  ARB6TL—
AR#185 T  ARB1827T
Residential A 1,145,854 1,218,099  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB43,333 —  RMB41,441 —  Slightly higher the
[F2H HE A price RMB47,482 per  RMB43,165 per  adjusted price rate,
BRERH(E square meter  squaremeter  slightly higher the fair

Residential B 70,000

Comparison approach Adjusted transaction

BEAKARYE  BTHKARE value

FEZ HBF price

BRERSHE
Commercial B 23,901 24,883  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction
H%C HERE

Annual Report 2015

$83BT— N — BREENS ArE
AE¥4T48270 ARE43166T fiE
HK$18,121 — — Slightly higher the
HK$26,979 per adjusted price rate,
square feet slightly higher the fair
LA value
18,1217 — BREENS  AnfE
26,9797 =
RMB39,167 —  RMB30,904 —  Slightly higher the
RMB50,641 per  RMB47,987 per  adjusted price rate,
square meter  square meter slightly higher the fair
BYFKRARYE  BYIRAARE value

39,167 —

30,9047 —
AR¥50641 T ARE4T 87T

RHREENR  AAE
&

—E R FFW
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16. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s
investment properties were held under a business
model whose objective is to recover through sale, of
which HK$205,628,000 (2014: HK$337,560,000) has
been reclassified as assets held-for-sale upon meeting
the conditions for such classification.

At the end of the reporting period, the fair value of the
investment properties reclassified as assets classified
as held-for-sale is arrived at by reference to the selling
price agreed with independent third parties during the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

All the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

16. REWE(#E)

DREFERMEERF(E)

BREEATIRBRZERTEBRAR
BZER(EIL)(E)

R2015F 12 31 B - AEEHFHE M
ZETHREMERALEABEZHE
B, - HAf 205,628,000 7T(2014 4 :
337,560,000 7T ) i & 7% 78 22 2 &k T
EASEREIHE 2 BE -

REEHR AREMES BIIE
BIEHENEEZ AR BERUNRER
20154F M 201412 AT H ZFEER
BBV E=AETENHEEEMERE

FrEAREBALERLN T AR EWE
HENEERENYEERGARAE
BAFE - YN BERIIRR/REYE -
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BE2015F 12731 HIEFE
17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. M%¥ - BERRE
Leasehold
land and Furniture
buildings Leasehold and Office Motor Plantand  Construction
HELH  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
kBT  RENERE BRERME BRERE RE BERES EBIE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
COST OR VALUATION RABSMEE
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 7818 334,520 7,882 13,668 16,703 31,047 212,706 1,778,850 2,395,261
Exchange adjustments EiBE (254) = (113) (138) (o44) (35672 (16,037) 20,368)
Additions RE = = 2,17 754 9,412 = 1,219,494 1,231,831
Disposals e = = (157) (1,206) (1,507) = = (2,959)
Revaluation Bfh 9,563 - - - - - - 9,563
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31A 343,829 7,882 15,454 16,024 38,708 209,134 2,982,307 3,613,338
Exchange adjustments EiBE (986) = (797) (803) (1,962) (11,853) (173516) (189.917)
Reclassified to investment ~ Z51Z##
properties (Note 16) nE (it 16) (69,000) - - - - - - (69,000)
Additions RE = = 973 1,715 2,592 173 760,626 766,079
Disposals e = = 979) (1,214) (1,100) (2,058) = (5,551)
Revaluation Bfy 4187 = = = = = = 4,187
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31A 278,030 7,882 14,651 15,722 38,238 195,196 3,669,417 4,119,136
Comprising: (2
At cost RIRAE - 7,882 14,651 16,722 38,238 195,196 3,569,417 3,841,106
At professional valuation #2015 2 £ (A {E
- 2015 278,030 - - - - - - 278,030
278,030 7,882 14,651 15,722 38,238 195,196 3,569,417 4,119,136
DEPRECIATION ik |
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1A18 3,560 7,625 7,389 11,270 21,109 67,421 - 118,374
Exchange adjustments EREE (125) - (61) (98) (172) 2,289) - (2,739)
Provided for the year EERE 11,328 257 451 1,430 2,743 26,132 = 42,34
Eliminated on disposals LEREH - - (147) (1,193) (1,356) = = (2,696)
Eliminated on revaluation  EftEHH (10,169) - - - - = = (10,169)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%512831A 4,59 7,882 7,632 11,409 22,324 91,270 = 145,111
Exchange adjustments Eia% ) = (379 (655) (1,262) (6,190) = 8,757)
Provided for the year FEER 9,614 = 723 1,329 3,662 24,486 - 39,814
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - (884) (1,096) (990) (1957) - (4,927)
Eliminated on revaluation ~ EfE# 3 (8472) - - - - - = (8472)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31A 5,465 7,882 7,092 10,987 23,734 107,609 - 162,769
CARRYING VALUES RAE
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12831A 272,565 — 7,559 4,735 14,604 87,587 3,569,417 3,956,367
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 A31A 339,235 = 7,822 4615 16,384 117,864 2,982,307 3,468,227
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. V¥ - BERREE)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on
a straight-line over the following years:

REZTRINALYE  BEEREZ
HERATRZFNABRENTE :

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over HELHMNET 50 F 5 A

the lease term, MK FHALARE A2

whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 3 years HEWEEE 34
Furniture and fixtures 10 years EROVSE ] 104F
Office equipment 5 years N 5%
Motor vehicles 6 — 10 years YRE 6 — 104
Plant and machinery 10 — 15 years i Bs B e 25 10 — 154

At 31 December 2015, the legal titles of the Group’s
properties and a container terminal with carrying
value of approximately HK$33,805,000 (2014:
HK$35,194,000) and HK$106,809,000 (2014:
HK$111,736,000) situated in the PRC have not been
passed to the Group.

R2015F 12 8318 NEE R AF
BlzWEREEMBBE 2 ERENS
33,805,000 75(2014 4F : 35,194,000
# 7T ) } 106,809,000 7T(2014 4 :
111,736,000 87T ) 2 EENARBPER
£E -

The carrying value of the leasehold properties HEMZEZ REESE
comprises:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Long-term leasehold properties situated in EEENRIPHEEDE
Hong Kong 211,550 276,350
Properties under medium-term land use right 7 B LA 2 HA £ #h {5 A
situated in the PRC ERA Y% 61,015 62,885
272,565 339,235
3 7 o] [ BT e =

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2015 and 2014 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on the
respective dates by Vigers and A-Plus. The valuations
were arrived at using direct comparison method
by reference to sales evidence as available on the
market. The revaluation surplus on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings amounted to approximately
HK$12,659,000 (2014: HK$19,733,000) was credited to
asset revaluation reserve.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The leasehold land and buildings measured at fair
value subsequent to initial recognition are grouped to
Level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value are observable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

Annual Report 2015
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M- BERREBE)

NEBHEE L RIEFR2015F
%2014 12831H 2 A £ B Ty &
RER T REERZBEL 2 EE
SIS o AT E DR EZELEE
K2REEATT S A IS A EEBR
METE HETHWREFEHANE
B #) A12,659,000 JT(20144F :
19,733,000 7)) B L EFF ABEE G
it o

WEEMERZAREBEMS  WEZEA
RzR&mRRERR -

BRERRZAET I REFMEAR
REFE  YREBEAIBEAAEBEZER

ZRERZEEZERE 2 EENER
R

RAEFEALRERE 3 FHERHA -
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used

in the determination of fair values for the Group’s major
leasehold land and buildings and the key unobservable

MBHRME

17. Y% - BERREE)

BRAEATTHERZESAELR
EZER(E3IR)

TRETARARRRASE 2 T EH
EL BT RAAEFEZFERM
EARHEEAR TR A RBR 2

inputs used in the valuation models. B e
Relationship
Range of of unobservable
Valuation unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
Description Fair value techniques Unobservable inputs FIHBEL FURBE2EER
&R MME B FARBEZER EREE AAEZEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAx &
Office A 33,805 35,194 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB39,167 —  RMB32,089 —  Slightly higher the
N LB price RMB50,641 per  RMB47,987 per  adjusted price rate,
BRER5E square meter  square meter slightly higher the fair
BYAKARE  BIHRARE value
39,167 — 3089w — EHEENS AR
AR¥50641 7T AR%47987TT fi®
Office B 195,000 190,800 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$37,474 —  HK$35,211—  Slightly higher the
WAZEL L8R price HK$44,409 per  HK$44,409 per  adjusted price rate,
ERERHE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
EYHR37474 EFHR value
BT —44400  35211%T— SHBENE OB
) 44,400 % T e
Residential 35,331 103,193  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$3,309 — HK$3,000 — Slightly higher the
iz B price HK$11,772 per  HK$25,838 per  adjusted price rate,
BRERHE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
BTHR3,300  BFHR3,000 value
BT 1,172 L —25838 BARERE  ARfE
BT BT &
Car park 430 406 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB191,158 — RMB210,000 —  Slightly higher the
= &A% price RMB227,000  RMB220,000  adjusted price rate,
BRERGE per carpark per car park slightly higher the fair
space space value
SEFEREL SERZSEN LREENE DrE
AE%191,158  ARE210000 #&
T — AR® ;T
227,000 © 220,000

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17.

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued)

Certain leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated

reliably between the land and buildings elements, the

leasehold interest in land continues to be accounted for

as property, plant and equipment.

If leasehold properties had not been revalued, they

would have been included at a historical cost basis at

the following amounts:

M- BERREBE)

BRAEATTHERZESAELR
BEZER(E3I/)(F)

ETHET W BERE AR S ORE
T RBFE D - Rl HEERS

HEEMERTERS  AZFVESN
B s AN EAEDIBRANT

o

HK$’000
FEIT
Cost as at 1 January 2015 AR 20151 A1 H 174,674

Accumulated depreciation and impairment ST E MRERE
losses (116,595)
Reclassified to investment property (Note 16) 5| E&E M (K7 16) (5,406)
Carrying value at 31 December 2015 BREER 20154 12 A 31 H 52,673
Carrying value at 31 December 2014 BREER 20146 12 A31 H 65,979

18. Land Use Rights 18. LT iifFEF#E
HK$°000
FET
cosT R

At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 81 H 222,835
Exchange adjustments TN (1,976)
Released for the year FEEH (4,550)
At 31 December 2014 MR2014% 12 A31H 216,309
Exchange adjustments EH (12,207)
Released for the year FIE#H (4,487)
At 31 December 2015 MR2015%12 A31 H 199,615
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18. Land Use Rights (Continued) 18. T ifERARE(E)
The land use rights of the Group were held under ANER B 2 M (E FARE R R A B LA HA
medium-term lease in the PRC and released over the HEFE WA EH S0 F#H -
term of the lease of 50 years.
19. Goodwill 19. B8
HK$’000
FET
COST AR A
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R2014%F1 A1 B &2014F X%
and 2015 201512 A31H 72,987
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R2014F1 A1 B K 2014 F K
and 2015 2015412 A31H (26,524)
CARRYING VALUE BRME{E
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 R2014F X 2015412 A31 H 46,463

Included in the carrying value of goodwill as at 31
December 2015, HK$7,001,000 (2014: HK$7,001,000)
has been allocated to the CGU for property
management (“Unit A”) and HK$39,462,000 (2014:
HK$39,462,000) has been allocated to cash-generating
units for production and trading of petrochemical
products (“Unit B”).

The recoverable amount of Unit A has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period
based on an estimated growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%)
with a discount rate of 12% (2014: 12%). Cash flows for
further five years are extrapolated at zero growth rate.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculation
is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which
is determined based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

BENR2015F12A31 B2 2E - BE
87,001,000 J£(2014 4F : 7,001,000
BTN EVEER 2H S ENM
BRmEE(ERA]) &39,462,0007% T
(2014 4 : 39,462,000/ 7T ) 20 i &
EEREERRETIERZRSELSE
i 2 BREE([EB]) o

BUAZ B IS 58 T EANME R EE
HET SEAZERAKEERE#Z -
EREET3% (20144 : 3%) Fi#E K =R
LA12% (2014 4 : 12%) BRIR R+ E 1
TFEMBBEMSHNERTER - K&
AFEZBEEREERATEREGE - £
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19. Goodwill (Continued) 19. BE &)
The recoverable amount of Unit B has been determined BBz A Bl & 58 T ENME A EE
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation HEF ;TEHFATERKLEREIZ
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets AEREETEMBZ £ERE HIA12.9%
approved by management covering a five-year period (20144 : 12.4%) - BRIRKGTEH 5 F
based on the estimated production capacity of Unit MBFBEEFSMIR S RTEA - HIE5F
B with a discount rate of 12.9% (2014: 12.4%). Cash ZHEESMHETER2% (2014F : 2%) F
flows after the five years period are extrapolated at 2% HEX - FHEEFENS HBXTER
(2014: 2%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the ERBEWARENE - DiRZBENA
value in use calculation is the budgeted revenue and FrRAREEBHMSERE CTEHE
gross margin, which is determined based on the unit’s 7E °
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is ARARIZEEERRB AR ARSI R
no impairment required as at the end of the reporting RERBZEE -
period.
20. Interests in Associates 20. BiE QTR
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted Bt QAR ERANE— JELT 579,417 375,348
Share of post acquisition profits and other BERBERAREMEEA
comprehensive income, net of dividends Wzt~ Mk E RS
received 164,109 187,027
743,526 562,375

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of
the reporting period are set out in note 45(b).

Annual Report 2015
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. BENRIER(E)
Summarised financial information of associates BENRMBEERNRE
Summarised financial information in respect of each of KEETRE B2 ERHEEE

the Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised

ST « M N2 M B ERBERRBETR

financial information below represents amounts shown REE RN 2 ERER 2 EERER

in the associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

B wRE £

AT AR e

All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial

statements.

Zhong Hai You Qi
(Taizhou) Petrochemical
Company Limited
(“Zhong Hai You Qi”)

IBEZSHE AR RRASEEETA
FAEMBHRRA

Cinda Jianrun
Property
Company Limited
(“Cinda Jianrun”)

PiEmR (=M AL EERMMERRAR
BRAR( HEHER]) (MMEE&"8)
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET &
Current assets MEBEE 1,914,324 2,614,183 1,380,123 1,204,987
Non-current assets FRBEE 4,340,338 2,163,385 36 77
Current liabilities REEE (1,283,788)  (2,038,238) (1,177,912)  (928,775)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (2,901,626) (1,286,335) - —
Revenue WA 5,103,393 6,752,683 - —
Profit (loss) for the year F R (&) 17,826 206,306 (60,888) (87,523)
Other comprehensive (expense) ERNEMEE (ZH)
income for the year Wz (33,182) (3,391) 1,384 (987)
Total comprehensive (expense) ERZE (X H )z
income for the year HBEE (15,356) 202,915 (59,504) (88,510)
Dividend received from FAYEEE DA Z
associates during the year s - 6,692 - -
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. BEQRER(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial J:%;ﬁﬂ“éfﬂﬁg 1A ARG B 7S R T
information to the carrying amount of the interest in RZBE N R REENFEX
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
Zhong Hai You Qi Cinda Jianrun
)<y BEER
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn AT TEn TET FEr AT
Net assets FEE 2,069,248 1,452,995 202,247 216,289 2,211,495 1,729,284
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ AEE Z BRERAIELfI 33.00% 33.00% 30.00% 30.00% N/A N/A
interest (Note) (Note) THEA TER
(Hit) (Hit)
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEEEREE
interest 682,852 479,488 60,674 82,887 743,526 562,375
Note: Zhong Hai You Qi is an associate of Tai Zhou Dong Thai Mz - RBERRAREIEZE RSN B
Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ Dong Thai”), a A EMREALCARAB(FR
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. During the MERF DB E QA - KR2015%5F
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group and other 12;] 31 H 2%@ %\E.&ﬁ\ﬁt
shareholders of Zhong Hai You Qi made additional 337793 SRR R 2 R U ﬂ{’ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ?\\
capital injection to Zhong Hai You Qi. The additional '§$T\’}n7\ ° $§%@&_A§59|\ﬁ$
capital injected by the Group was RMB189,148,000 }\EM189,1‘48_,000{5§$H (=AW
(equivalent to approximately HK$225,984,000). There is 225,984 Q?O/ﬁiﬁ) &éﬁ&}ﬁ]\@%
no change in proportion of shareholding after this capital W52 H BRAE LI
injection.
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of associates
(Continued)

In prior year, the Group held 49% equity interest in
Yang Quan Coal Industry (Group) Tiantai Investment
Limited (“Yangquan Tiantai”) and accounted for the
investment as an associate. In December 2014, the
Group disposed of its entire interest in Yangquan
Tiantai to Yang Quan Coal Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.
for a consideration of RMB873,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,116,662,000). This transaction
resulted in the recognition of a gain on disposal of
associate during the year ended 31 December 2014,
calculated as follows:

20. BENRIER(E)

BELNTMBERBRE)

RAFEE AEBEHFFIO%ZH R
HEEBARARKREEREFERAF(IS
RRFR ) 2 B A #E & 30 LA B & N A
ABE - M2014F 128 REE UK
8 A K #873,300,000 T(HH & R 4
1,116,662,000/% 7T ) X E B B R X
R THREE(ER)ERAR -
REZ2014F 12 A31TB LR HEHK
BR—EHEBRL AR ZWE - WiHE
U

HK$’000
T8
Proceeds of disposal & 2 5KIE 1,116,662
Less: Carrying amount of the 49% investment i - RAEEAFENEH Z 49% KHEZ
on the date of loss of significant
influence (955,884)
Add: Reclassification of cumulative translation 77 : RHEHR AT RHER FHHEENE
on reserve upon disposal of Yangquan
Tiantai to profit or loss 25
Gain on disposal of associate 0SB E N 160,803

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued)

21.

Summarised financial information of associates
(Continued)

In prior year, the Group held 50% equity interest in
Beijing East Bay Investment Consultancy Company
Limited (the “East Bay”) and accounted for the
investment as an associate. In December 2014, the
Group disposed of its entire interest in East Bay
to an independent third party for a consideration
of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,393,000). This transaction resulted in the
recognition of a loss on disposal of associate during the
year ended 31 December 2014, calculated as follows:

20. BENRIER(E)

BELNTMBERBRE)

RATFE  AEEFAILRRERE
BB ARAA (LR R E])50% &2
e a DA = A R ARR © R2014 412
A ANEE AR 5,000,0007T (48
B #6,393,0008 L) 2 RELEH
EZERT BMYEZR  REE
2014612 A31 B2 F AR HFHER
EHENT 2 EBEERT

HK$’000
T/ET
Proceeds of disposal & 2 3RIE 6,393
Less: Carrying amount of the 50% investment & - KEERFE NEHZ50% & 2~
on the date of loss of significant
influence (16,570)
Add: Reclassification of cumulative translation 77 - RS REE 2 RFHER FHEESEE
on reserve upon disposal of East Bay
to profit or loss 779
Loss on disposal of associate HEHE AR 2 EiE (9,398)

Amounts Due from an Associate

The amount as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are
unsecured, interest-free and are expected to realise
in the next 12 months from the end of the reporting
period, except that as at 31 December 2015, an
amount of HK$389,391,000 (2014: HK$413,080,000)
bears interest at 13.5% (2014: 20.5%) per annum.
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B Z 20154 12 H 31 AIFEE
22. Structured Finance Securities 22, #EMSEIES

The structured finance securities represent a debt
security with interest payments based on the return
from United States Treasury Bond and distribution from
preference shares in a private company which invests
in a portfolio of asset-backed securities. Expected
maturity date of the debt security is Year 2021. The
structured finance securities contain an embedded early
redemption option and the return which is determined
by reference to the distribution from the private
company which is dependent on the annual default
rate of its underlying asset-backed securities and the
return from United States Treasury Bond. The Group
designated the entire structured finance securities as
financial assets at FVTPL at initial recognition.

The fair value of the structured finance securities is
determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation provided by the counterparty
financial institution at the end of the reporting period.
This fair value is determined by reference to the value of
a comparable new issue of the similar structured finance
securities under the market situation as at 31 December
2015 and 2014. The major assumptions adopted for
the valuation of the structured finance securities are as
follows:

(1) The estimation of risk free rate by reference to
the yield of United States Treasury Bond with
same remaining duration as the structured finance
securities adjusted by the issuer’s credit rating;
and

(2) The estimation of the default rate of the underlying
asset-backed securities by reference to the
historical default rate of asset-backed securities
with similar characteristics.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

23. Available-for-sale Investments

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

MBHRME

23. THHERE

AHEEREERE -

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
FETT FET

Listed investments: EHmiEE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at fair RED Em 2R
value BHIE R EET - 24,613
Unlisted investments: FEHRRE :
Unlisted equity securities, at cost (Note) FEEMRAES -
BKAG (H177) 272,459 307,993
Club debentures, at cost SAMES B 5,613 5,613
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value JEEMIRAFEHZ R EET 34,177 54,037
312,249 367,643

Less: Impairment loss recognised

B - EWERBERE

(2,070) (39,998)

Total investments at cost 4355 R AN ET 310,179 327,645
Total |BF 310,179 352,258
Note: Hiet -

Unlisted equity investments represent investments in unlisted JFEETRAZETIIERERHTLABTERETT
equity securities issued by private entities. The business of ZIHEETERAZS - ZERAIZEBKBIE
these companies include, but not limited to power and financial BARBRRENRERIRBITE(014F : &
services (2014: power, winery and financial services). They are N BBERSERBITE) BRNMEEAE
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting HNEEARBEHEAKN  ARAEZELR
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates REANEEEN S E  BAUZERE
is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the Th ¥R B R AR AN HIBR BB R T = ©
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group RBZE20156F12A31BZFEAN A%
acquired 4% equity interest of Beijing TeraSolar Photothermal B LA 4B 69,295,000/ L (FEE R AR

Technologies Co., Ltd (“Beijing TeraSolar”), an unlisted entity,
for a total consideration of HK$69,295,000 (equivalent to
RMB58,000,000) (Detailed in note 41).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, HK$62,250,000
unlisted equity available-for-sale investment was disposed of
as part of the disposal of a subsidiary (Detailed in note 39).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, gain on disposal of
unlisted available-for-sale investments of HK$36,406,000 has
been recognised in profit or loss. Of the total gain on disposal,
HK$9,101,000 represents for the tax borne by the purchaser
on behalf of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Kuenkel-Wagner
Prozesstechnolgie GmbH (“KW”), a Germany based mechanical
engineering company specialised in founding technology, which
was the major subsidiary of Modern Season Limited (“MSL”)
was liquidated. Hence, the Group’s unlisted equity investment,
in MSL, amounted to HK$37,928,000, was fully impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

24. Loan Receivables

24. EWER

2015 2014
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAT

Fixed-rate loan receivables (Note a (i) & (i) EERKER(Haza ()% (i) - 697,085
Variable-rate loan receivables (Note a (i) & b) ¥ BEWE R (H#ta () Zb) 270,012 101,394

270,012 798,479

Analysed for reporting purposes as: UNE2REMHTAT :
Current i 270,012 228,137
Non-current IERB - 570,342
270,012 798,479
Notes it

(@ () As at 31 December 2014, HK$570,342,000 was
secured by the equity interest of the borrower,
carries fixed interest rates at 10% per annum.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group renewed the borrowing agreement with
the borrower to revise the interest rate to floating
interest at 25% above the PBOC interest rate. As
at 31 December 2015, the outstanding amount
was HK$270,012,000.

(i)  As at 31 December 2014, HK$126,743,000 was
unsecured, carry fixed interest rate of 5% interest
per annum and repayable in year 2015. The
balance was fully settled during the year ended 31
December 2015.

(b)  As at 31 December 2014, the balances were unsecured,
carry interest rate at the standard lending rate quoted
by the PBOC per annum. Included in the variable-rate
loan receivables, HK$101,394,000 was due from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, which could
exercise significant influence over this subsidiary.

Loan receivables as at the end of the reporting period
are neither past due nor impaired. The Group did not
provide impairment loss for loan receivables. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, no impairment
loss is considered necessary in respect of these
balances as they have assessed the financial strength
and repayment ability for the borrowers.
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B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

25.

Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company and China Uranium Development Company
Limited (“CUDC Limited”), a subsidiary of China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd., a
shareholder with significant influence over the Company,
entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement,
the Company acquired an exchangeable bond (the
“Bond”) issued by CUDC Limited with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$776,000,000 at a consideration
of HK$776,000,000. The Bond is exchangeable into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital
of CGN Mining Company Limited (“CGN Mining”), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, at the exchange
price of HK$1.41 per share. The Company has the right
to exchange all or any part of the principal amount of
the Bond in amount being not less than HK$1 million
and up to an aggregate of 20 time of exchange prior to
the maturity date. The subscription was completed on 1
June 2012 (the “Completion Date”).

CUDC Limited has an option to pay cash instead
of accepting the conversion in an amount equal to
the closing price as of the date of exercise of the
conversion right by the Company multiplied by the
number of shares that would have been converted into.

The Bond carries fixed interest rate at 5% per
annum and is matured on the date falling on the fifth
anniversary of the Completion Date. The principal would
be repayable on the maturity date if the conversion right
is not exercised. Interest is payable annually in arrears.
The Group designated the entire loan receivable with
embedded derivative as financial assets at FVTPL at
initial recognition.
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B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

25. Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

(Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the Bond was
determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the prevailing market
rate of interest of similar instruments. The fair value of
the embedded options was calculated using binomial
model. The inputs into the valuation of the Bond were

as follows:

25. MAERARXNITTETAZERER

(%)

BEFAERN 2RI ETREMGETRK
ReEnERBUTAZ EAImSHER
REE RAXBREZAALETIER
ZIEEXFE - AMAEFRANEIEN
T

Stock price

Conversion price

Risk free rate (Note a)
Expected volatility (Note b)
Discount rate

Notes:

(@)  The risk free rate is determined by reference to the Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Note with similar time to maturities.

(b)  The expected volatility is the average of the adjusted
annualised standard derivation of the continuously
compounded rates of daily return on the daily adjusted
share price of CGN Mining and implied volatility of Hang

Seng Index.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the Bond was
HK$736,866,000 (2014: HK$733,844,000), with a fair
value gain of HK$41,822,000 (2014: HK$51,824,000)

credited to profit or loss.
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ERBRAN K (M ita)
BHIR R (HaE D)

HK$0.60E T HKS$0.75% 7T
HK$1.413E 7t HKS$1.4187x

0.288% 0.745%
69.290% 47.358%
12.305% 11.650%
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SNEES RIFET °
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EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
26. Inventories 26. ®E
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
Consumables JEAEm 46,951 3,924
Raw materials JR# 60,263 14,882
Finished goods X 6B - 2,173
107,214 20,979
27. Held-for-trading Investment 27. BEEBERE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FEr
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB EMHRARES -
at fair value BRARER 112,998 -
Fair value of listed held-for-trading investment was FIEEEREZ AN BERHERMISZ
based on quoted market bid price in the active market. BEAWREBERE °
28. Trade Receivables 28. FEWERR

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to its

trade customers.
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28. Trade Receivables (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

FEWBRR (&)

TIREER B RERE B AR R
2 WA TER B HIR 2 BUSRARN A
HBEBRZREDM

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
FETT FET

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 1,611 3,454
31 to 90 days 31HZE90H 2,551 3,251
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 5,065 3,218
181 to 360 days 181 HZE 360 H 3,723 2,853

12,950 12,776

The Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired are those debtors with satisfactory credit
quality under the management’s assessment and with
good past repayment records.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$11,339,000 (2014: HK$9,322,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivable is 145 days (2014: 114
days).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
yet impaired:

REE 2 BKRFIG BN RE M EA
TEHIRER - BIERNEREFHERAR
ERABRENEREERERTENE
BA e

AEBZEKEXREDERR
11,339,000 7r(2014 4 : 9,322,000
BIL)RAREHREDBHEAEEL
RBEREBE - NEEWSE HZA
BREEAER - ZEKERER 2 TR
#1458 (20144 : 1148) o

JE U5 AR AR B B BB 3 AR #ORE 2 BR B
#r

2015 2014
HK$°000

HK$°000
FETT FET

31 to 90 days 31HZE90H 2,551 3,251
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 5,065 3,218
181 to 360 days 181 HZE 360 H 3,723 2,853

11,339 9,322

The Group did not provide impairment loss for the trade
receivables.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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29.

30.

Deposits,
Receivables

Prepayments and Other

29.

B AARRAEMERRK

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETT

Dividend receivable from an available-for-sale A4t B & & 7 el A% 2
investment — 15,345
Value-added tax receivable (Note) A e 2 SR E R (e 278,950 170,078
Loan interest receivables JE U E A B 47,864 8,984
Others HAth 176,962 80,879
503,776 275,286

Note: Amount being the value-added tax recoverable from
the purchase of property, plant and equipment and raw
materials by a subsidiary, TZ United East. The amount
will be subsequently utilised to offset the value added tax
generated from sales of goods in the future.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and
Cash

The Group’s pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rate with effective interest at an average of 2.57% (2014:
2.80%) per annum and an original maturity of one year
or less. Pledged bank deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure settlements for certain of
Group’s purchase of property, plant and equipment and
raw materials.

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash
and short-term bank deposits carrying prevailing market
deposit rates with effective interest at an average
of 0.14% (2014: 0.18%) per annum and an original
maturity of three months or less. Included in the Group’s
bank balances and cash at 31 December 2015 was an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$434,267,000
(2014: HK$1,676,628,000) respectively which was
denominated in RMB and is not freely convertible into
other currencies.
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EZ20154F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
31. Assets Classified as Held-for-sale/Liabilities 31. JEREHEZEE FIEBEH
Associated with Assets Classified as Held- ECEECEREE
For-sale
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets classified as held-for-sale HIVEREHE 2 EE
— Investment properties — REYE 205,628 337,560
Liabilities associated with assets classified as  Fl|{ERF{EIHE B E 2 84S
held-for-sale ZBE
— Considerations received — WEIZz2RE 202,416 206,500

The disposal is pending for the approval from the
relevant regulatory authority and delivery to the
respective buyers.

32. Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2015, the Group pledged certain
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings,
land use rights and loan receivable with embedded
derivative with an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$2,294,026,000 (2014: HK$2,397,212,000),
HK$195,000,000 (2014: HK$259,800,000),
HK$199,615,000 (2014: HK$216,309,000) and
HK$736,866,000 (2014: nil) respectively to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 35)
and other payable to an independent third party (note
38).

At 31 December 2015, the Group pledged
HK$29,988,000 (2014: HK$33,762,000) bank deposits
to secure settlements for certain of Group’s purchase of
raw materials (2014: property, plant and equipment).

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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33. Share Capital

33. K&

Number Nominal

of shares value
KRB EE FHE

In thousand HK$’000
T TET

Authorised:
At 1 January 2014

— Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each

EERA
R2014F1 A1H

— FEAEE.2B T E@MA% 4,000,000 800,000

At 31 December 2014 and
2015 (Note a)

M2014E K% 201512 A 31 H

(Bfita)

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2014

— Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each
Transfer from share premium and capital
redemption reserve upon abolition of par

value (Note b)

ERTREMERA :
M2014%1 818

— FRAEE 2B T E@MAX 2,304,850 460,970
BUBEEZ RO RERR
BEARBEOREEEAHZED)

— 3,165,811

At 31 December 2014 and 2015

M2014E K% 201512 A 31 H

— Ordinary shares with no par value — REHEBEZERER 2,304,850 3,626,781
Notes: Hiaz -
(@)  Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), (@) IRIBEEBAAEHI(E622F )R 2014

with effect from 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised
share capital no longer exists and the Company’s shares
no longer have a par value. There is no impact on the
number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of
any of the shareholders as a result of this transition.

(b)  In accordance with the transitional provisions set out (b)
in section 37 of schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014 any amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve have become part of the

Company’s share capital.
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B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
34. Reserves 34. f#fE
Attributable
to owners of Non-
the Company controlling
PNNG| interests Total
BB AR R ER ok
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Asset revaluation reserve BEERE
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1A1H 187,298 — 187,298
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties EREEMENRR 19,733 - 19,733
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of EEMEENEELY
leasehold properties EREBIEEE (1,687) = (1,687)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31 B 205,344 — 205,344
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties BEEENERE 12,659 - 12,659
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of BEEENEEEL
leasehold properties EERIBEE (1,020) = (1,020)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31H 216,983 - 216,983
Investment revaluation reserve REEMhGERE
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1A1H8 7,344 — 7,344
Change in fair value arising on revaluation of BAHEEREES
available-for-sale investments DAER (7,326) - (7,326)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment ~ FREBIE 7 AT HERE
recycled to profit for the year AR 15,536 - 15,536
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 A31H 15,554 - 15,554
Change in fair value arising on revaluation of BAHEEREES
available-for-sale investments DAERE (19,102) - (19,102)
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of REEAHEERESIZE
available-for-sale investment Bax (758) - (758)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment  FRE B8 7 o] ft B ERE
recycled to profit for the year REEE 4,323 = 4,323
At 31 December 2015 R20165 12 A31 R 17 - 17
Translation reserve ELRE
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1 A1 8 932,760 37,784 970,544
Exchange difference arising on translation BEEAZERES (56,402) (2,935) (59,337)
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve  HEE5M B 25t
upon disposal of foreign operations to profit ERREENZERR
or loss (804) — (804)
Share of reserves of associates BiEBmEARRE (1,415) = (1,415)
At 31 December 2014 M2014% 12 A31 H 874,139 34,849 908,988
Exchange difference arising on translation HEEAZERES (378,290) (23,879) (397,163)
Share of reserves of associates BiamanRRE (10,535) - (10,535)
At 31 December 2015 R2015% 12 A31 B 490,314 10,976 501,290

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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35. Borrowings 35. f&&
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans — secured IRITER — HIEA 2,132,782 2,141,991
Other loans — unsecured HitnEm — EEHR 473,105 403,485
Bank overdraft RITEX - 26,929
2,605,887 2,572,405
Carrying amount repayable: JEEE RS :
Within one year —F2ZA 1,112,293 863,713
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A EE
two years THEA—F 770,370 584,588
More than two years, but not more than —FLA B
five years TR 465,950 887,199
2,348,613 2,335,500
Add: Carrying amount of bank loans o BERERER
containing a repayment on demand ES QBN =N =41 1974
clause (shown under current liabilities) TEEERZIRITERZ
with scheduled repayment set out in the RESR
loan agreements due: GlRrEar) :
— within one year — —F2A 252,764 229,631
— more than one year, but not — —FLAEE
exceeding two years THBA—F 2,829 2,764
— more than two years, but not more — —FLAEE
than five years TNHEBAF 1,681 4,510
2,605,887 2,572,405
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & R—EZRE WS A
under current liabilities i @J%%Zi\ ] (1,369,567) (1,100,618)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites 3| &IEREB B B2 &5 1,236,320 1,471,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HILFE
35. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings are secured by certain investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings, land use rights
and loan receivable with embedded derivative. Details
are disclosed in note 32.

Bank loans of the Group of HK$650,000,000 (2014:
HK$440,000,000) are denominated in HKD, which
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
Group. The bank loans carry floating rates at HIBOR
plus 2.0% to 2.5% (2014: HIBOR plus 2.0% to 2.5%),
i.e. effective interest rate of 2.553% to 3.351% (2014:
2.228% to 3.045%) per annum respectively. Bank
loans of the group entities other than the Company of
HK$7,274,000 (2014: HK$9,976,000) are denominated
in HKD, functional currency of the relevant group
entities, and carry a floating rate of prime rate minus
2.7% (2014: prime rate minus 2.7%) per annum or
effective interest rate of 2.3% (2014: 2.3%) per annum
respectively. The remaining bank loans of the Group
are denominated in RMB, functional currency of the
relevant group entities and carry floating interest rate
ranging from 105% to 110% (2014: 105% to 135%) of
PBOC three-year interest rate or effective interest rate
of 5.64% to 5.91% (2014: 6.36% to 8.84%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2015, other loan of HK$30,000,000
(2014: HK$150,000,000) was denominated in HKD,
which is not denominated in the functional currency of the
Company, and was borrowed from a shareholder of the
Company which is unsecured, bears fixed interest at 4.0%
per annum and repayable on demand. The remaining
other loans of HK$443,105,000 (2014: HK$253,485,000)
were denominated in RMB, functional currency of the
relevant group entities, which are unsecured, bear fixed
interest ranged from 5.35% to 8% (2014: 7%) per annum
respectively and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2014, bank overdraft of the Group
of HK$26,929,000 was denominated in HKD, which
was not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant group entity, and carried floating interest rate of
prime rate minus 1.5% per annum or effective interest
rate of 3.5% per annum respectively.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

36. Deferred Taxation 36.

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the

IEFE B R

UTARAREFERNEFENTEOH
RIEERIAE E LB AR ERAHRE R

current and prior years: PA 1 4 & 5
Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of Tax
depreciation properties losses Total
MERBITE MEER RBER am
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FBT FAT FAET
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 818 (55) (283,072) 1,808 (281,319)
Credit to profit or loss for the year WAEEBRERTA
(Note 12) (Wit 12) - 97,115 - 97,115
Charge to other comprehensive RAEE E i 2 ERE IR
income for the year - (1,685) — (1,685)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 31 R (55) (187,642 1,808 (185,889)
Charge to profit or loss for the year RAEEER R A
(Note 12) (ffat12) - 9,219) - (9,219)
Charge to other comprehensive RAEE B2 R
income for the year — (1,020) — (1,020)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31H (55) (197,881) 1,808 (196,128)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$698,533,000
(2014: HK$479,381,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$10,957,000 (2014:
HK$10,957,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$687,576,000 (2014: HK$468,424,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams and such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
36. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 36. ELEHIE(E)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on R ATE B L T B20086F1H1H
dividends declared to overseas investors in respect FA16 - AR BT B A |l BT 5% A i 2 R
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January FHEIMNEEE ZREFHKRTENEE -
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been RSB AT ERN
provided for in the consolidated financial statements B R AT B A A5 2R B = 2 A B [
in respect of temporary differences attributable to A gEBE - Bt RPEHEBR
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting 7] #2,372,651,0007% JT(2014 4 :
to HK$2,372,651,000 (2014: HK$2,413,868,000) as 2,413,868,000% 7T ) R 5t M| 2 H B
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal ZEME & RRE B AR ET ALRE B
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the BmERNA °
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
37. Trade and Bills Payables 37. EFRRRERE
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills Tt REBEER AEEZ EAERALE
payables presented based on the invoice date at the BRARERRZRE DT
end of the reporting period:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
0 to 30 days 0z=30H 40,880 30,931
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H 11,451 15,122
91 to 180 days 91 HZ=180H 148,842 8,438
181 to 360 days 181 HZE 360 H 14,236 9,253
Over 360 days 818 360 H 58,383 50,513
273,792 114,257

As at 31 December 2015, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$142,294,000 in relation to
the purchase of raw materials from an associate, which
are non-interest bearing, repayable within one year
and secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
HK$29,988,000.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

R2015F 12 A31H ' BN — KB
ERABARME 2 HRBEREEES
#142,294,0008 T R EAN B - R —
FAERBTUARER 2 HFRTFR
29,988,000 /8 JTLIEHE I ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

38.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other
Payables

At 31 December 2015, the balance includes an amount
of HK$45,042,000 (2014: HK$47,782,000) payable to
an independent third party in relation to purchase of
land use right in the PRC. The amount is secured by
certain investment properties of HK$61,051,000 (2014:
HK$63,878,000), bears fixed interest at 4.68% per
annum for both years and is repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2015, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$48,820,000 (2014:
HK$41,400,000) payable to five (2014: one) non-
controlling shareholders of two (2014: one) subsidiaries.
These non-controlling shareholders are able to exercise
significant influence over respective subsidiaries. The
amount of HK$37,500,000 (2014: HK$41,400,000)
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The remaining balance represents the interest
payables to a non-controlling shareholder.

At 31 December 2015, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$507,826,000 (2014:
HK$688,519,000) payable to independent third parties
in relation to construction costs payable for property,
plant and equipment in the PRC. The amounts are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2014, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$33,762,000 in relation to
construction costs payable for property, plant and
equipment in the PRC, which are non-interest bearing,
repayable within one year and secured by the Group’s
pledged bank deposits of HK$33,762,000.
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39. Disposal of a Subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group disposed of its entire interest in a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Champion Glory Holdings Limited
(“Champion Glory”) (the “Champion Glory Disposal”).
The net loss on disposal of the Group was as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities which control was lost:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

39. HE-—RWBLH

REBE2016F12A3BZFEFE RN
AEBLHEZERBENONE QA
Champion Glory Holdings Limited
([Champion Glory |) ) & 2f # z5[ H &
Champion Glory | o & 2 /&= T :

BREGECEERAB DN

HK$°000

FET

Available-for-sale investment — at cost AIEHERE — KA 62,250
Net loss on disposal of subsidiary: HEMB AR ZFEIE

HK$’000

FET

Cash consideration received W B138 £ KB 56,394

Net asset disposal of HEZFEE (62,250)

Net loss on disposal & 2 FEE 5,856

Net loss on disposal of HK$5,856,000 was included in
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Net cash inflow arising from the Champion Glory
Disposal at the date of disposal:

H & 7 % E518 5,856,000 78 T B2 B A E
GEBERRMEMEmKEER -

R H & B B H & Champion Glory 3| #E
ZHEESFRALT ¢

2015
HK$’000
FET
Total cash consideration received g Bl 4837 & KB 56,394

Net cash inflow arising on the disposal REZ2015F12 A31 H

for the year ended FEAHEZ
31 December 2015 WEFMA 56,394
Silver Grant International Industries Limited IRERRE XS] A
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40. Operating Lease Arrangements
As lessor

Property rental income earned by the Group during
the year was approximately HK$86,107,000 (2014:
HK$81,575,000). The properties held have committed
tenants for lease terms ranged from 1 year to 9 years
(2014: 1 year to 8 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

40. EEHNZTH

UHBEAED

AEEBRFARBRNMERSKALE
86,107,000 7L (2014 4F : 81,575,000
BIL)  HAEZYMEBEBITAOM
B HHEER1IFEIF(201445 ¢

1FEE8F)TF -

RAREHR - ARBERBEIT AR

WE TNt R RSB E -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Within one year —FE AN Em 70,382 91,016
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFE_EFRTF
(BREREMFEAN) 69,948 44,081
After five years AFELAR 2,047 2,086
142,377 137,183
Annual Report 2015 — T RFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

41. Capital Commitments

41. BAREE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE FET
Capital commitments in respect of property, EARBEAWE  HEX
plant and equipment: 2 B ARG
— contracted for but not provided in the — BREEIARGETB
consolidated financial statements wFE A R - 47,402
— authorised but not contracted for — BHRUEERETY 174,683 150,837
174,683 198,239
Capital commitments in respect of unlisted FARIEEMRAB S 2 ER
equity securities: EIE
— contracted for but not provided in the — BEREEIARNGE VI FEEmE
consolidated financial statements R (ffiEab)
(Note a & b) 248,507 —
Notes: Hiat
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group @ R & =2015F128318 It & &
entered into a shareholders’ agreement with several A AEEBEETRARIAREEE
parties to incorporate a jointly-controlled entity, namely BEBHEKLEERRF  PERIER
Zhongxin Zhangbei Solar Energy Thermal Power [SREZV BB R A al([ KR
Generation Co., Ltd (“Solar Energy Thermal Power”) to BREDEEKGREEEEILE
invest in a solar energy project. Total capital of Solar B> KIGREEABETE N AIBREARGEA
Energy Thermal Power would be RMB1,000,000,000 R #1,000,000,000 7T * 7 £ B # #=
of which the Group has committed to inject I & A R 150,000,000 7T (FH & %
RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$179,212,000), 179,212,000 70 ) * BABEREE
represents 15% equity interest of Solar Energy Thermal NAEl15% Az - R2015F 12 A
Power. As at 31 December 2015, the establishment of 318 - KIGgeREE QA RMKILIE
Solar Energy Thermal Power has yet completed and the WARTER - Bt AERE ARSI E R
Group has yet to pay its committed amount. S -
(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group (o) ™ E £2015F12H31H It & &

entered into a capital injection agreement with Beijing
TeraSolar, which is principally engaged in construction,
management and technical consultancy of concentrated
solar power projects, pursuant to which, the Group
agreed to subscribe 8% of the enlarged share capital
of Beijing TeraSolar for a total consideration of
RMB116,000,000 (equivalent to HK$138,590,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
has paid HK$69,295,000 and subscribed 4% of the
enlarged capital of Beijing TeraSolar. The remaining
HK$69,295,000 will be paid upon the request of Beijing
TeraSolar.
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BFE2015F 12 A31 HiIFFZ
42. Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group and are held in
funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$11,663,000 (2014: HK$11,249,000) represents
contributions to these schemes by the Group in respect
of the current accounting period. As at 31 December
2015 and 2014, no contributions due in respect of the
reporting period had not been paid over to the scheme.
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43. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

43. BBAIRS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

FR - AREEBRTET RS

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income from an associate —REEE R A RFERA 55,763 85,858
Interest income on loan to non-controlling LB AR AITEE R E 2K
shareholders of subsidiaries, which &R~ ElJEE IR R
can exercise significant influence over ZERFEMA
respective subsidiaries 4,269 2,530
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ¥ B AR AIITEE AR
from non-controlling shareholder of a 2l =YNGIE S e 8
subsidiary which can exercise significant BEYWE  BEREHE
influence over this subsidiary 46,250 63,371
Rental income from associates B A AR ES WA - 99
Other income from a substantial shareholder B —REBI R 2 HAablUg A - 11,5622
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholder — f% 8 3% {1 Ff BB A 5 AT 1745
of a subsidiary, which can exercise BEARFE KB R R FEEH
significant influence over subsidiary AR ER — 6,600
Interest expense to a substantial shareholder —ZKF Z/%ER 2 B H 9,635 3,754
Purchase of raw material from an associate B—XEE R RBEARMR 1,565,491 —

Details of balances with related parties and other
transactions with related parties are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and notes

21, 25, 35 and 38.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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BE2015F 12 531 AIFEE
44. Major Non-cash Transactions 44. TEFRERH

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
HK$69,000,000 property, plant and equipment was
reclassified to investment property due to change of
management’s intention (Detailed in note 16).

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
HK$507,826,000 (2014: HK$688,519,000) in relation to
the addition of property, plant and equipment was not
settled as at 31 December 2015 and was included in
accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables.
Details are set out in note 38.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, amount of
approximately HK$55,763,000 (2014: HK$85,858,000)
on relation to interest income generated from loan
advanced to an associate, which was not settled as at
31 December 2015 and was included in amounts due
from associates as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, amount of
approximately HK$35,223,000 (2014: nil) in relation to
interest income generated from loan receivable to a
third party, which was not settled as at 31 December
2015 and was included in deposits, prepayment and
other receivables as at 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, addition of
property, plant and equipment of HK$91,722,000 was
settled by deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment in the prior year.
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BFE2015F 12 431 HIEF/E

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and

Associates

(a) Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at (a)
31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Nominal value of

45. FEMB AR REEZE AT

EATWEEKNB L TAR2015F
% 2014512 B 31 BREEBWT ¢

Country/place issued ordinary Proportion of nominal

of incorporation/  share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/

establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of company /R BRTEERRE/ ARAFEECRTLARRE/ Principal activities
ARER 8%/ fitt AMEAERE AREREELA IEXER

2015 2014
DT GICIATM  Directly  Indirectly
B B Ef i

Beijing East Gate Development Co.,  PRG (Note ) US$100,413,500 - 100% - 100%  Property development and
Ltd. (*Bejing East Gate”) ) 100,413,500%7% investment

IRREEXBRAR(IRRR)) MEERRRE

Beijing Yinda Property Management PR (Note i) RMB10,000,000 - 90% - 90%  Property management
Limited (*Yinda") hE(Hi) AR%10,000,0007C VES

FRRENZERERAAAR
([el)

Beiing Ju Fu Real Estate PRC (Note ii RMB105,000,000 - 90% - 90%  Property development and
Development Company Limited S &) AR 105,000,007 investment
(*Befjing Ju Fu") MEERRRE

FRERRHEREERAT
(MtRER))

Greenhill Property Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US§1 100% - 100% —  Investment holding

EBRAHS 157 RERK
Likesway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
HERERAT & 28T investment
RANZRRE
Real China Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
RRERERLRA B 28T investment
RENERRE

Silver Grant Hainan Investment BV)) ~ British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% —  Inactive
Limited RERLES 127 XK

Siver Grant Infra-Structure British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
Investment (BVI) Limited EBRAHES 1% RERRK

JuFu San Yan Jing Investment Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited ) 28T RERR

ER=RAREARAA

= [5F] R = 2 =

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. FEMB AR REE QAT (E)

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and
Associates (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at (@ A2RMNEZHKHE AR R2015
31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: FR2014F12A31H W FEF W
(Continued) T:(#&)

Nominal value of
Country/place issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
of incorporation/  share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of company /R BRTEERRA/ AARFEECRTLERRE/ Principal activities
ARER 8%/ fift AMEREE AMEREELA IERH
2015 2014
Directly  Indirectly JMICIAUTR1ol(-10i
B i Ef i
Silver Grant International Securities  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% — 100%  Securities trading
Investment Limited B 28T E7EE
RRARTARERRAA
Silver Grant Securities Investment ~ British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
(BVI) Limited RERUHE 157 REER
Straight View Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
ERRERRAT 5 100%7 REBR
SYJ Holding Limited British Virgin Islands ~ HK$2,170 100% - 100% = Investment holding
ABRARE 217087 RERRK
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
EMEaRAH 57 28T investment
RANERIRE
Winner Property Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
ABRIRS 137 REZR
Sun Steed International Investments  British Virgin Islands ~ US$100 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
Limited RERAEE 100%7 RERR
REERREERAT
Silver Grant International Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Petrochemical Limited &k 10037 RERR
SEARAERLA
7Z Dong Thal PRC (Note i RMB230,000,000 - 69.78% - 69.78%  Investment holding and
TR hE (i i) AR 230,000,0007 investment
RERRRIRE
TZ United East™ PRC (Note iv) RMB463,645,186 - 66.77% - 66.77%  Production and trading
FMREAT e iv) AR 463,645,186 T of petrochemical
products
EERHERM IER
Annual Report 2015 — T —RFEFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and 45. TEMBARIRBE AR (£)
Associates (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at (@ ZA2RAMNEZHKHE AR R2015
31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: FR2014F12AN BN FE W
(Continued) T:(#&)

Nominal value of

Country/place issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
of incorporation/  share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of company /R BRTEERRA/ AARFEECRTLERRE/ Principal activities
ARER 8%/ fift AMEREE AMEREELA IERH
2015 2014

Directly  Indirectly JMICIAUTR1ol(-10i
B i BR i

Xin Jiang Zhong Qing Luan Chuang ~ PRC (Note iv) RMB5,000,000 - 60% - 60%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited ~~ REV(#:2 i) AR 5,000,007 RERR
(“Zhong Qing")’
nETERANEARAA(RE])
Fast Winner Investments Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1,000 100% - 100% —  Inactive
EBRIRE 1,000%7 RS 3
Aesco Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
Bk 200,007 RARR
Beiing Runda International PRG (Note ii) RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Investment Management Limited S E(#77 /i) AREE100,000,0007C REER

("Beijing Runda”)
IRAEERREERERAA

([rmEE])
Long Bright Capital Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$100 70% - 70% —  Investment holding
REZRERAT ZRRLHE 100%7 RERK
Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 70% - 70%  Investment holding
AEREARAT &k 10047 REBK
Fast Growing International Limited ~~ British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
EBRAME %7 RERK
Champion Glory British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 - - 100% —  Investment holding
AERNEE 157 REBR
Taizhou Yinjian' PRC (Note i) (Note v) RMB100,000,000 - 100% — —  Environmental
ZHER SEWEi) (Fetv)  AR#100,000,0007 conservation and
renewable energy
investment
BEREREEMRRE
202 Silver Grant International Industries Limited SREREREEAR a)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and

Associates (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at
31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
(Continued)

A

The names in English are for identification only.
Three out of five directors of this subsidiary are
appointed by the Group. The Group control 60%
of the voting right in general meeting.

#

Notes:

(i) It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise.

(if) It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC. Under the joint venture
agreement, the Group is responsible to contribute
RMB9,000,000 to the registered capital of Yinda
and share 90% of the profits and losses of Yinda.

(i)  These subsidiaries are registered domestic
enterprises.

(iv) It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC.

(v) It is a an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group established during the year in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

Other than the investment holding companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
have no principal place of operation, and Beijing
East Gate, Yinda, Beijing Ju Fu, TZ Dong Thai,
TZ United East, Taizhou Yinjian, Zhong Qing and
Beijing Runda which operate principally in the
PRC, all other subsidiaries principally operate in
Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2015

45. FEMB LRI REE QAT (E)

(a)

ARATWEEHN B DT R2015
FR2014F 12831 HEWHB L
T: (&)

! RXABEHRSE -

! ZHBARMEREFNESD
—EHAREZE - AEER
PRER K& 12| 60% I FHE

i) HHBARRA—X2INEHE
B -

(i) BR-FRRBPERIZZFIINE
Bh¥ REAEER A%
EaEHEARE9,000,0007T
fERBEZEMER TEH
D FIREI0% B °

(i) ZEMBARA/EMAELE -

vy ZMBARARPEKLZH
SMEBELRE -

V) EAKEERZERAZHEAR
RERERBKT

RER - LEMERARAETE
AR ANES -

BREBRAEEEMKILZRE
ER AR EEBRERME AR
ERRER - BE LRER F
MR - FMREAET - FTINR
2 opERIEBETIERRY
BZESN - FrAEMmK B A RS
TERERRE -

—E-REFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and 45. TEMBARIRBEE AR (£)
Associates (Continued)

(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31 (b) AEBEzHZE DQFN2015F K
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: 2014512 A 31 HAYRFEOT ¢
Country of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ value of issued ordinary
Form of establishment  Principal share capital/registered
business R YA A place of Class of capital held by
Name of company structure B%it%/  business shares held FrEEERTEERRE/  Principal activities
ARER %) Fitesh TEEXBE  RROER AMEREERLA IEXH
Cinda Jianrun Domestic PRC PRC Registered 30% 30%  Property development and
(ERRE enterprise i capital operation, property
mELE HER management and
construction
NEERREE NEEER
Bt
Zhong Hai You Qi Domestic PRC PRC Registered 23.08% 23.08%  Production and trading
TAHR enterprise~ EL e capital of petroleum and
MELE AR petrochemical products
EERFERBRARIT
Em
204 Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEREERN B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and 45. TEMBARIRBE AR (£)
Associates (Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) FHEEARFEZFREZIF2ER
have material non-controlling interests BB AT ZFHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly TRINEGFEERIEEFER 2
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material IEEHEBEMB AR ZFF1E:

non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation interests and

and principal  voting rights held by (Loss) profit allocated

place of non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated

business interests interests non-controlling
Name of subsidiary KB R FEHER BERE AEFHFE interests
WEARERE TEEENHY w2 HIRREE B2 (B8)EN Rat 2 FEHER

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 [GTCHWM HKS'000 [GIEXI
FET T FET TiAT

TZ Dong Thai PRC 30.22% 30.22% (800) 19,409 184,808 197,578
ZTMER i
TZ United East PRC 33.23% 33.23% (61,528) (7,666) 166,076 238,604
ZMRHE T i
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with

non-controlling interests (1,712) 3,349 19,702 22,620

IR 2 AR FEAMB LT

370,586 458,802

Summarised financial information in respect of EREEE AFEIEHIEZ 2 NE
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material BEEHMEARZHEERBEE
non-controlling interests is set out below. The FIGATR « M NEBIIEE R B ER
summarised financial information below represents TAEBEIERI 2 258 o

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and 45. TEMBARIRBEE AR (£)
Associates (Continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) FHEEARIEZFREZIF2ER
that have material non-controlling interests EMB AR 215 (4#Z)
(Continued)

TZ Dong Thai

FEMRZE

2015 2014
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAT

Current assets mBEE 443,431 251,968
Non-current assets EmENEE 679,687 477,716
Current liabilities RBRE (505,691) (70,003)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE = =
Equity attributable to owners of the R RHER ANEEIRA

Company (432,619) (462,103)
Non-controlling interest FEfE il i (184,808) (197,578)
Revenue WA - =
Expenses i (12,652) (12,669)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) R (2,649) 64,226
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: FR(EE) R EM

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIET PN (1,849) 44,817

Non-controlling interests FEPE Il = (800) 19,409
(Loss) profit for the year FRN(EE) = (2,649) 64,226
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2HE () RSB EN -

attributable to: B

Owners of the Company PN/NTEZ Z DN (29,484) (41,001)

Non-controlling interests FEIZEfI R (12,770) (17,756)

Total comprehensive (expense) income for

FARE () KA

the year (42,254) 58,757
Net cash outflow from operating activities 482 %7 2 FIR &R (1,025) (5,898)
Net cash outflow from investing activities 8 & £ 2/ F R &R E (124,590) (70,628)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing BMEEB 2 FHESRACRL)

activities 155,421 (74,955)
Net cash inflow (outflow) FRERACRLH) 29,806 (151,481




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SRR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and

Associates (Continued)

(c)

45. FEMBARARBE QTR (E)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) FEEAFEGHEZZ2HEZTER
that have material non-controlling interests EMB AR 215 (4#Z)
(Continued)
TZ United East EMEBT
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets mENEE 489,733 352,626
Non-current assets EMBEE 3,926,161 3,377,100
Current liabilities mEBE (3,077,833) (1,729,597)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (838,219) (1,282,000)
Equity attributable to owners of the NAEHER AEERA
Company (333,766) (479,525)
Non-controlling interest e (166,076)  (238,604)
Revenue WA 30,759 123,050
Expenses i (222,552) (206,780)
Loss for the year FAEE (185,181) (23,071)
Loss for the year attributable to: FAEIBELN
Owners of the Company ARAIREE A (123,653) (15,405)
Non-controlling interests R R (61,528) (7,666)
Loss for the year FRNEE (185,181) (23,071)
Total comprehensive expense SEX LBFEEN
attributable to: N
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZ SN (145,759) (17,605)
Non-controlling interests e (72,528) (8,761)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRN2HE X HEFE (218,287) (26,366)
Net cash outflow from operating activities £ & 5755 2 53R 7t (353,212) (45,138)
Net cash outflow from investing activities 2 & %% 2 53R E 7t (806,824) (871,631)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEXB 2 FHRESRA 939,445 775,324
Net cash outflow FHRE M (220,591)  (141,445)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and
Associates (Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

TZ United East (Continued)
Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary

As at 31 December 2014, the Group injected
additional capital of RMB200,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$252,417,000) to TZ United
East, increasing its controlling interest from 50% to
66.77%. The difference of HK$1,325,000 between
the decrease in the non-controlling interests
and the capital injected was debited to retained
earnings.

46. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves
of the Company

45. FEMB AR REE QAT (E)

(c) FEEAFEHEZZHFZEH
BB LRz E(E)

BMRBEEL (&)
W8 1 RIHY R IR

HE2014%12H318 ~%8
BN R B TR AZEINE AR A
R 200,000,000 7t(18 & % 4
252,417,000 70 ) + 3 hn K 4=
i 7 25 B 50% £ 66.77% ° B 3k
TSRO RERIEAZERE
1,325,000 7t E 5t A R 88 ' FI
q:: o

46. A AR R R FEER
2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties "EYZE 93,901 24,883
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB R 35,067 105,747
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries TENIE LB A 735,073 734,119
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U FfY 8 A B3R 2,344,091 2,339,202
Structured finance securities EREESRES 6,728 6,655
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 36,957 81,430
Loan receivable with embedded derivative WERAXITETAZ
FEWE KR 736,866 733,844
3,988,683 4,025,880
Current assets REBEE
Held-for-trading investments HFIEEBERE 112,998 =
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRNREREMD
receivables FEU R 711 11,336
Amounts due from subsidiaries g NEI BN 869,680 1,083,975
Amounts due from associates G NGB 10,410 4,410
Bank balances and cash SRITER MRS 17,767 2,360
1,011,566 1,102,081
TOTAL ASSETS BEERAE 5,000,249 5,127,961
208 Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEREERN a)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

46. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves
of the Company (Continued)

46. ADQBIMBERARFEERE)

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
EQUITY [N
Capital and reserves EXK#E
Share capital N 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves G 590,324 276,807
TOTAL EQUITY RSB {E 4,217,105 3,903,588
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FnBERE
Borrowings BE 400,000 160,000
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBEE 8,863 8,863
408,863 168,863
Current liabilities =R
Accrued charges, rental deposits and EErER - HKiEe hHEA
other payables NN 34,417 29,161
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN E=PNGIE:N 59,864 596,349
Borrowings (==t 280,000 430,000
374,281 1,055,510
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHAE 783,144 1,224,373
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BAREEBEEE 5,000,249 5,127,961
Net current assets EREBEE 637,285 46,571
Total assets less current liabilities EEHBERABERS 4,625,968 4,072,451

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 21 March 2016
and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Tianni 8/ X {7
Director &%

Annual Report 2015
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Gao Jian Min 5&ZE
Director &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B ZE2015F 12431 HIFF/E

46. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves
of the Company (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve

46.

ERBRPBRR R ERE)

RRBREZEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARERAEE
Asset Capital  Investment
Share Share  revaluation redemption revaluation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R BHEE BEE(RE ZARORE REERRR REBEH At
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(Note)
(Wit)
At 1 January 2014 1201451518 460970 3,151,819 81,169 13,992 7,327 136,205 3,851,532
Profit for the year EmiaAl = - - - - 163,717 153,717
Other comprehensive income for ~ FAEMZERE

the year - - 5311 - 8,210 - 13,581
Total comprehensive income for M2 EMEAE

the year — — 53711 - 8,210 183,717 167,298
Transfer upon aboltion of par SEBAREAET

value under the new Hong HAE B2

Kong Companies Ordinance (H233)

(Note 33) 3,165,811 (3,151,819) - (13,992) - - -
Dividend (Note 15) RE (it 15) = = = - - (115,242) (115,242)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31A 3,626,781 - 86,540 - 15,537 174730 3,908,588
Profit for the year ERgd] - - - - - 444,217 444,077
Other comprehensive income EREmzEkE

(expense) for the year (i) - - 19 = (15,537) = (15,518)
Total comprehensive income ErzEbE(T)

(expense) for the year &g - - 19 - (15,537) 444,277 428,759
Dividend (Note 15) hE (it 15) - - - - = (115,242)  (115,242)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31A 3,626,781 - 86,559 - - 503,765 4,217,105
Note: Htat -

Fair value change of available-for-sale investment measured
at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the
available-for-sale investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY Bt E &

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A81HLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million LS YV[CMM HKS$ Million
AEAT AEAT AT AEAT AE%T
Results E |
Revenue KA 462.6 555.0 400.8 424.2 340.0
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners  AARIHE A
of the Company EHENET (BE) 375.6 103.8 65.0 109.4 (65.8)
At 31 December
M12A318
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million RSB HKS$ Million
BEET AEET AEAT BEET AE#T
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Investment properties and property, REMERME
plant and equipment BE R 3,510.6 4,205.0 5,082.4 5,948.1 6,399.7
Land use rights TifERE 70.3 221.2 222.8 216.3 199.6
Goodwil HE 46.5 46.5 46.5 46.5 46.5
Structured finance securities ERESHES 6.2 6.5 6.2 6.6 6.7
Interest in a joint venture BEATER 83.1 89.4 — = -
Interests in assoclates NG 2 2,197.9 1,457 4 1,458.5 562.4 743.5
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 7278 699.6 480.1 352.3 310.2
Deposits paid for purchase of land use rights BB +itfE BiER % «
and property, plant and equipments B Rk zize 35.7 - 91.7 = -
Loan receivable with embedded MERAATETLR
derivative EWER - 736.2 720.8 733.8 736.9
Loan receivables — non-current BWER — 7B = 622.5 127.9 570.3 -
Net current assets RERBEE 1,998.9 885.0 1,072.7 1,039.1 150.4
8,677.0 8,969.3 9,309.6 9,475.4 8,593.5
Share capital B 461.0 461.0 461.0 3,626.8 3,626.8
Reserves =1 6,832.0 6,794.2 6,937.5 3,732.1 3,163.4
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A A1A A (R 7,293.0 7,255.2 7,398.5 7,358.9 6,790.2
Non-controling interests IR 503.9 409.8 449.9 4588 370.9
Non-current liabilities FnFaR 880.1 1,304.3 1,461.2 1,657.7 1,432.4
8,677.0 8,969.3 9,309.6 9,475.4 8,593.5
Annual Report 2015 — T —RFEFR
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWEMBME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B 22015F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
The following is a list of the Group’s investment properties at TH ABAREBMK2015F 12 831 HHIEEY
31 December 2015: FRE -
Investment properties in the PRC NRFEZREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i 25 A ER A& EEmE
Sq. ft.
FER
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level 0 and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, term lease [SES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC H Hj
B R R E SRR AT 195 RIRE S HE B -
WE2E - RER1EEIE
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower (including 401, Long lease Residential 31,171
402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408, 501, 502, 503, 505, 506, =3 *=
507, 508, 30/F and 31/F) East Gate Plaza, 39 Dongzhong
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
PR R RS ERP IR RIRESEEAEE
F4Z%31E(B1E 401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408,
501, 502, 503, 505, 506, 507, 508, 301£ &% 311&)
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,993
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, = A3 *=
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
PELRMRRERPH19RRIRESILEAEE
F 4231
4.  Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, Medium term Commercial 10,540
No. 28 Dong Zhong Jie Jia, lease (EES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC. (Note) R HR
PR R R E R PR 28 R EREE2E5
6 R 8EE S (Hat)
Note: The legal title of the properties have not been passed to the Biat - WWEYMEZEEMR2015F12 A31 HHAR
Group at 31 December, 2015. BEFAEE o
Investment properties in the Hong Kong NRERBZRENE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i 2h AR A& EEmE
Sq. ft.
FHR
Flat B, 9 Floor, 6A Bowen Road, Hong Kong Long lease Residential 3,007
EHBEZE6AIEBE £ A F=
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